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2012-13 marks the 20th anniversary of the Employees Retraining
Board and is of special significance to us. Over the past two decades,
the economy and employment market of Hong Kong have witnessed
a series of ups and downs. We once enjoyed a golden era of full
employment and economic prosperity. We also weathered hard
times of recession and fear. These turbulences notwithstanding, the
ERB has sat tight on its commitment and stood shoulder to shoulder
to support Hong Kong people in embracing challenges, overcoming
difficulties and forging ahead for a better future.
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Structure of the Employees Retraining Board
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Representative of
Employers

Dr. Lawrance WONG
Dun-king
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Representative of
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Mr. SIN Kai-ming, MH
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Person connected with
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Manpower Planning

Professor Danny
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Person connected with
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Dr. Christine WONG
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Person connected with
Vocational Training and
Retraining or
Manpower Planning

Mrs. Mimi CUNNINGHAM
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Dr. Christine WONG Siu-ping
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Ms. Winnie NG
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Mr. PUN Tin-chi
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Representative of Permanent Secretary for Labour
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Representative of Commissioner for Labour
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Finance and Administration Committee
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& Members
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Mrs. Mimi CUNNINGHAM

BT RENREIWERAR
Representative of Permanent Secretary for Labour
and Welfare

BT RRERRE

Representative of Commissioner for Labour

1432 & 8 Co-opted Members

BIERE R E
Mr. David YU Hon-to
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Mr. Patrick HO Pak-tai
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Public Relations and Promotion
Committee
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e K& Members
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Professor Leo SIN Yat-ming
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Committee
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Mr. YU Pang-chun, SBS, JP

e K& Members

HREBRSE A, MH

Mr. SIN Kai-ming, MH
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Dr. Christine WONG Siu-ping
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Representative of Commissioner for Labour
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2012-13 was a year that made us proud.
We are thrilled at the recognition and support
of the public towards the work of the ERB.
We shall strive to build on our existing
strengths and make further breakthroughs in
enhancing the quality of our training courses
and services for the benefit of the human
capital of Hong Kong.
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2012-13 marks the 20th anniversary of the Employees Retraining
Board (ERB) and is of special significance to us. Over the past two
decades, the economy and employment market of Hong Kong have
witnessed a series of ups and downs. We once enjoyed a golden
era of full employment and economic prosperity. We also weathered
hard times of recession and fear. These turbulences notwithstanding,
the ERB has sat tight on its commitment and stood shoulder to
shoulder to support Hong Kong people in embracing challenges,
overcoming difficulties and forging ahead for a better future.

The ERB’s work centres on the administration of training courses
and services. In the last 20 years, we have provided altogether
some 1.7 million training places to nurture quality manpower
for different industries, enhance the competitiveness of serving
employees, and empower businesses to develop and grow. We
emphasise the importance of timeliness and appropriateness
of our courses and services in addressing market demands and
training needs of the general public. Upholding the “market-
driven and employment-oriented” principle, we have extended
our service targets to include serving employees, people with
higher educational attainments, and social groups with special
needs including youths, new arrivals, ethnic minorities, persons
with disabilities, persons recovered from work injuries and
occupational diseases and ex-offenders. We have adopted a
“multi-pronged” approach to foster continuous improvement in
course quality. We continue our efforts to develop professional
certification training, arrange accreditation for our training
courses, improve practical skills assessment and strengthen our
quality assurance mechanism. Effective from 2012-13, the ERB
will formulate on an annual basis a “Three-year Strategic Plan”
to set out its strategic directions and longer-term work focus. The
“Learn and Leap — Teen's Action 2012" and “Enterprise-based
Training Scheme” under the “Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus” are
new initiatives under the “Three-year Strategic Plan” for 2012-13
to 2014-15.
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2012-13 was a year that made us proud. We are thrilled at the
recognition and support of the public towards the work of the
ERB. In his 2013 Policy Address announced on 16 January 2013,
the Chief Executive remarked:
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“Over the years, the Employees Retraining Board has strived to
improve the employability of local workers to maintain
the competitiveness of our economy. | affirm the role and
contributions of the ERB and consider that it should be provided
with sustained and stable financial support as a long-term

commitment to enhancing the productivity of local workers......
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In the 2013-14 Budget delivered on 27 February 2013, the
Financial Secretary proposed to inject $15 billion into the
“Employees Retraining Fund” to provide the ERB with long-term
financial support, so that we can continue to offer diversified and
quality training courses and services to enhance the employability
of the local workforce. We are indebted to the Government and
the public for the full support to our work. We shall strive to build
on our existing strengths and make further breakthroughs in
enhancing the quality of our training courses and services for the
benefit of the human capital of Hong Kong.
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2012-13 was also a year that made us sad. Despite our favourable
progress on various fronts, we regretted the passing away of our
highly respectable former Chairman Dr. NG Tat-lun in January 2013.
This was a huge loss to the ERB as well as the society of Hong Kong.
Dr. NG joined the governing board of the ERB in 2005-06 and was
appointed Chairman in 2009-10. During his tenure, Dr. NG was
committed to extending the scope of service of the ERB, enhancing
its service quality, raising its standard of corporate governance, and
leading it to scale new heights. Our sincere thanks go to Dr. NG for
his valuable contributions to the ERB.

Dr. NG's philosophy of life and never-ending pursuit of knowledge
make him a role model for every one of us. The ERB will continue
its efforts and serve Hong Kong people with heart and enthusiasm,
and look forward to making further contributions in the field of
training and employment.

William LEUNG Wing-cheung, BBS, JP
Chairman

Employees Retraining Board
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In the past two decades, the ERB has kept up _
with the pace of the society and the economy =
in offering and continuously enhancing the -

quality and quantity of training courses andrﬁ:. ;
services geared towards the needs of Hong 11_-5-}'._
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In response to the economic restructuring of Hong Kong, the
Employees Retraining Board (ERB) was established in 1992 to assist
middle-aged people with relatively lower educational qualifications
and skills level to return to the employment market after retraining.
In the past two decades, the ERB has kept up with the pace of the
society and the economy in offering and continuously enhancing
the quality and quantity of training courses and services geared
towards the needs of Hong Kong people.

In December 2007, the ERB extended its service targets to
include people aged 15 or above with education level of sub-
degree or below. Currently, ERB’s service targets amounted to
2.6 million.

In 2012-13, the ERB implemented a series of brand-building
activities in celebration of its 20th anniversary. They included the
ERB 20 Commemorative Ceremony; production of a corporate
video, the “ERB 20 — Who and What" brochure and the “Live
in Joy and Faith” thematic film series; the ERB 20 Roving Expo;
and the ERB 20 Closing Ceremony cum the 5th ERB “Manpower
Development Scheme Award” Presentation Ceremony. Through
these activities, various stakeholders were able to witness the
achievements of the ERB on different fronts.

In 2012-13, the ERB has completed the implementation of
different measures under the “Final Recommendations on the
Strategic Review on the Future Directions of the ERB” approved
by the Chief Executive in Council on 31 March 2009. To respond
aptly to the latest changes in the society and plan ahead for future
development, the ERB began to formulate on a yearly basis its
“Three-year Strategic Plan” in the year. This Strategic Plan outlines
the roadmap of development and sets out the concrete work plan
for the following years.
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The key objectives of the “Three-year Strategic Plan” for 2012-13
t0 2014-15 include:

1. to timely respond to the needs of the society and the
employment market;

2. to assist trainees map out progression ladders and enhance their
employability and competitiveness in the employment market;

3. to provide convenient and suitable services geared towards
the needs of the clients; and

4. to enhance the professionalism and acceptability of training courses.

The latest “Three-year Strategic Plan” of the ERB adopts a two-
pronged approach. On the “proactive” side, the ERB is actively
developing the high-potential market of post-natal care services,
and enhancing the understanding of young people of the world
of work and connecting them with relevant social resources
through the implementation of the “Learn and Leap — Teen’s
Action 2012"”. On the other hand, the ERB strives to strengthen
its quality assurance measures and optimise its existing courses
and services on a continuing basis.

In 2012-13, the ERB partnered with 126 appointed training
bodies to offer more than 800 training courses under the
“Manpower Development Scheme”. These courses straddled
nearly 30 industries. Among them, some 200 were full-time
placement-tied courses designated for the unemployed; some
500 were “Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus” courses targeted at
serving employees; and about 70 were generic skills training
courses spanning across different industries. A total of 130,000
training places were made available.

The ERB adopts a “market-driven” approach for course
development. In 2012-13, the ERB focused on developing job
types with high employment potential, including notably the
development of training, skill assessment and employment
support for post-natal care workers. The ERB also emphasised the
importance of market research and analysis. With reference to the
trend of an ageing population, the ERB commissioned strategic
research on the potential manpower demand for related services
to collect information for future course planning purposes.
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2012-13 was the double-cohort year for secondary schools in
Hong Kong. In view of this, the ERB launched the “Learn and
Leap — Teen’s Action 2012” to help secondary school leavers
understand the world of work and prepare for their careers. On
a different front, the ERB launched the “Employment Set Sail
for Youth” courses to offer training on fundamental vocational
skills to secondary school graduates and assist them to acquire
recognised professional qualifications.

The ERB has been actively developing professional certification
courses and courses leading to the award of National Occupational
Qualification Certificates. In 2012-13, the ERB offered about
130 professional certification courses straddling 17 industries.
The majority of ERB courses have been accredited by the Hong
Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications and are recognised under the Qualifications
Framework. This would allow trainees of the ERB to map out their
study plans and move up their progression ladders.

In 2012-13, the ERB spared no effort to promote the development
of consultative and collaborative networks. The ERB teamed up
with the “Industry Consultative Networks” to prepare “Industry
Overviews"” and “Course Progression Charts” for 23 industries.
In a related development, the ERB set up a “Focus Group on
Training for Persons with Disabilities and Persons Recovered from
Work Injuries”, with membership comprising representatives
of employers, social service organisations, training bodies and
government departments, to better gauge the training needs of
the concerned target groups.
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The ERB began its work in the establishment of district networks.
Using the three districts where the “ERB Service Centres” are
situated as pilot districts, the ERB formulated service and promotion
strategies with reference to the unique characteristics of the
concerned districts so as to foster district partnership. The ERB also
continued to expand its employer network and encourage industry
collaboration, and addressed the recruitment and training needs of
enterprises with the “Industry Service Programme” and a host of
value-added services. Under the “ERB Manpower Developer Award
Scheme”, the ERB strengthened its promotion and marketing
efforts, and actively encouraged “Manpower Developers” to
participate in various services and activities of the ERB to showcase
their commitment to serve the society.

With the further extension of ERB training courses and services,
quality assurance work has become increasingly important. In
2012-13, the ERB strengthened its quality assurance system in
terms of on-site audits, class visits, assessment inspections and
surprise inspections with a view to boosting service quality and
cost-effectiveness. The ERB also organised training and experience-
sharing sessions for course instructors to improve teaching quality.

On course administration, the ERB undertook reviews of the
allocation mechanism of training places and the fee-charging
policy for half-day or evening courses and came up with
recommendations for improvement. The ERB also put in place
measures to shorten the waiting time for course enrolment.
Moreover, the ERB encouraged training bodies to organise “SUS
Plus” courses under the “Enterprise-based Training Scheme” for
employers and trade associations. The objective was to help front-
line employees master vocational skills and acquire good work
attitude so as to increase their competitiveness.

In February 2013, the Government announced the injection of $15
billion into the “Employees Retraining Fund” to provide the ERB
with sustainable and stable financial support. The ERB, as always,
will continue to strive to develop new courses and services to
address timely to market demands, and ensure that the resources
are effectively utilised to achieve this purpose.

Stanley NG Ka-kwong, BBS
Executive Director
Employees Retraining Board
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The Internal Audit Section reports directly to the Audit Committee.

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report @



—RB20)E&N RS

To Sustain —
ERB 20 Campaign




. BRAEGRREXATREA R
I.l_.l.'.'lhli.l FIREDIR | AEAN

L el




TiEEIRR

Operational Review

ERB 205EE R 5l

REVKIL20 EAF @ EEBEIIIBE2012-13 FEHH [ERB 20)88 R3] - UAEBEZ A KA HEE
AE  RMEABHMETR - AT EEREERROARBIES N TER -

FEH#EYT [ERB 20/R BN 5 I - ABEARFNE - BREBFHM - HilE - 2MERE - mEEE - E
T BEFBENAE AEITHNPERNER & PHRARDMERFNDEOREIHERE

ERB 20 Campaign

To commemorate its 20th anniversary, the Employees Retraining Board (ERB) launched the “ERB 20
Campaign” which comprised a series of diversified and innovative promotional activities to strengthen
the corporate image of the ERB and showcase its mission and accomplishments to the community.

The ERB collaborated with different stakeholders, including government departments, training bodies,
arts associations, business organisations, employers and trainees, to organise a host of activities under
the “ERB 20 Campaign”. The ERB fostered its strategic partnership with stakeholders and leveraged
on their social networks and resources to make the Campaign a success.
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Unveiling the ERB 20 Logo

The ERB adopted a specially designed “ERB 20" logo for the series of promotional activities and
propaganda to enhance its corporate image.

e As the main design concept, the number “20" was featured in the "ERB 20" logo, and this
emphasised the close collaboration of the ERB with trainees, employers, training bodies and
other stakeholders during the past 20 years in the provision of timely and adequate services to
meet market needs and contribute to the manpower training and development of Hong Kong.
In terms of colours, the dynamic design of the logo was prominently featured in eye-catching
red and gold colours.
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ERB 20th Anniversary Commemorative Ceremony cum
the 3rd Presentation Ceremony of the “ERB Manpower Developer
Award Scheme”

The Commemorative Ceremony was held in April 2012 to kick-start the “ERB 20 Campaign”.

e The Ceremony was officiated by the Hon. Matthew CHEUNG Kin-chung, GBS, JP, Secretary for Labour
and Welfare, Mr. Paul TANG Kwok-wai, JP, Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare, as well as the
Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Executive Director of the ERB. Over 650 guests and managerial staff of
“Manpower Developers” attended the event.

e The ERB 20 thematic film “Live in Joy and Faith” was premiered at the Ceremony and the “ERB 20 —
Who and What" exhibition was held.

e The Commemorative Booklet on “ERB 20 — Who and What" was published to highlight the
milestone events and people of significance to the ERB in the past 20 years, and showcase the
efforts of the ERB in launching new initiatives and continuously upgrading its courses and services in
response to the changing needs of the society.

HBiBES0BREN [AAREIMERABHRERL @ HEAR -

Over 650 guests and managerial staff of “Manpower Developers” attended the event.
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The guests reviewed the milestone events and
people of significance to the ERB in the past 20
years at the “ERB 20 — Who and What" exhibition.
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“Live in Joy and Faith” Thematic Film Series

For the first time, the ERB collaborated with the Hong Kong Arts Centre to produce the ERB 20
thematic film series “Live in Joy and Faith”. Veteran film-makers were invited to take charge of the
production with innovative approaches.

e The “Live in Joy and Faith” film series, produced in distinctive styles of drama, documentary, music
video and multimedia animation, were based on the real-life stories of four ERB graduate trainees,
and demonstrated vividly their “never-give-up-and-always-add-value” spirit.

e The ERB widely publicised and broadcasted the films through different channels with a view to
attracting more audiences so as to enhance public understanding of the work of the ERB.

¢ The ERB organised a public polling campaign entitled “My Most Favourite ERB 20 Thematic Film”
for the public to cast their vote on their most favourite film.
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The film series were based on the real-life stories of
four ERB graduate trainees, and demonstrated vividly
their “never-give-up-and-always-add-value” spirit.
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"ERB 20 Roving Expo cum Premium Taster Courses”
included “Premium Taster Courses”, “ERB 20 — Who and
What" exhibition and ERB course exhibition, etc.
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More than 1,500 people enrolled in the “Premium
Taster Courses” to learn more about vocational skills
and prospects of various industries.

ERB 20 Roving Expo cum Premium Taster Courses

The ERB organised the “ERB 20 Roving Expo cum Premium Taster Courses” at three popular shopping
centres to further promote ERB courses and services to members of the public.

e The activities included “Premium Taster Courses”,”ERB 20 — Who and What"” exhibition, ERB
course exhibition and broadcast of the ERB 20 thematic film series. A booth on special features

of ERB courses was also set up to promulgate information on ERB services to the public in an
interactive manner.

¢ The three Roving Expos attracted over 3,400 visitors, and more than 1,500 people enrolled in the
“Premium Taster Courses”.

oy
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“Learn and Leap — Teen’s Action 2012" comprised “Career Planning
Seminars”, “Industry Taster Courses” and workplace experience
opportunities, and received nearly 11,000 applications.

i 5 E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board



Learn and Leap — Teen’s Action 2012

The ERB launched the “Learn and Leap — Teen's Action 2012" to assist Form 6 and Form 7
secondary school leavers to understand the world of work and better prepare for their careers. Fully
supported by the Education Bureau, the programme received nearly 11,000 applications from about
430 secondary schools.

¢ The programme comprised six large-scale “Career Planning Seminars”, 115 classes of “Industry Taster
Courses” and 1,200 places of workplace experience opportunities offered by 33 establishments. The
programme helped participants better understand their career aspirations and the working conditions
of different industries so that they would be able to formulate their learning and career plans.

e A “Graduation Ceremony” was held as a finale of the programme. Other than awarding “Teen's
Certificates” to the outstanding trainees, the Ceremony also featured experience-sharing of
trainees, artists’ performance and variety shows.

¢ Straddling May to August 2012, the programme attracted a total attendance of over 8,200. In view of the
favourable response, the ERB launched the “Learn and Leap — Teen's Action 2013" in December 2012.

FE[TEENFTE02012 — B RM | F - HHEERREFE
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The “Graduation Ceremony” of “Learn and Leap — Teen’s Action
2012" was held to award certificates to the outstanding trainees, and
to feature experience-sharing of trainees, artists’ performance and
variety shows.
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91 awards were presented at the 5th Award Presentation Ceremony to pay
tribute to employers, instructors and training bodies, and to acknowledge
the outstanding accomplishments of the graduate trainees.
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ERB 20 Closing Ceremony cum the 5th ERB
“Manpower Development Scheme” Award Presentation Ceremony

The Closing Ceremony was held in January 2013 as a finale of the “ERB 20 Campaign”.

¢ The Ceremony was officiated by the Hon. Carrie LAM CHENG Yuet-ngor, GBS, JP, Chief Secretary
for Administration, the Hon. Matthew CHEUNG Kin-chung, GBS, JP, Secretary for Labour and
Welfare, Miss Annie TAM Kam-lan, JP, Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare, as well as the
Vice-Chairman and Executive Director of the ERB.

e 97 awards were presented at the 5th Award Presentation Ceremony to pay tribute to employers,
instructors and training bodies who actively supported the ERB “Manpower Development Scheme”, and
to acknowledge the outstanding accomplishments of the graduate trainees.

e To commemorate the 20th anniversary, seven special awards of “ERB 1st” were presented to
training bodies, instructors and trainees who actively supported and participated in the work of the
ERB and contributed towards its development over the years.

SR XE W TR T 15 ¥ R I PR 2R TR

i@
¥ ¢
R RH) [ERB 203E B 55 | LMAT 5 1 E R EBEE . \ ¥ oy
$5IH o ﬁ*wﬁwa-'é& '
“ucl e i .
o [ERB 20EREFF | #132012 & E Galaxy Award BB — '
= oo g - Sl UNTER
NEAEMAE (1% — EARETISHEMER ] € -
o [ERB 20 EE) £ 5| | 15 2012-13 % & Mercury Excellence
Awards [ ERFI/ AR EBHRBET SRR — BT h
MR SRAE -
o MIERIEY B B ST E#E MerComm, Inc. 83 A B [ERB 207 B 2 51| | AR IE TS 1 &

) LI (AR 2K T B T M RS o EEEIA -
The ERB obtained two major international marketing
awards with the “ERB 20 Campaign”.

International Marketing Awards

The ERB obtained two major international marketing awards with the “ERB 20 Campaign”.

e The "ERB 20 Thematic Series” was the Bronze Winner of Galaxy Awards 2012 under the category of
“Video & DVDs: Marketing, Asia Pacific”.

e The "ERB 20 Campaign” was the Silver Winner of Mercury Excellence Awards 2012-13 under the
category of “Non-Profit / Public Affairs: Government Agency”.

e Granted by MerComm, Inc, the international award-granting organisation in the communications
field, the awards aim at acknowledging outstanding marketing strategies of establishments in the
international arena.
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The “Course Progression Charts” of different industries presented
diagrammatically the array of ERB courses available under the respective industry
categories, the level of the courses and the corresponding entry requirements.

Preparing “Industry Overviews” and “Course Progression Charts”

To allow people to have better understanding of the industries they are interested in, and to assist people to
formulate their training plans, the ERB worked in conjunction with industry practitioners to prepare “Industry
Overviews"” and “Course Progression Charts” for various industries.

¢ In collaboration with the Industry Consultative Networks
(ICNs), the ERB prepared “Industry Overviews” and
“Course Progression Charts” for 23 industries.

e The “Industry Overviews"” covered background
information of the industry, entry requirements, work
challenges and career pathway.

e The “Course Progression Charts” of different industries
presented diagrammatically the array of ERB courses
available under the respective industry categories, the level
of the courses and the corresponding entry requirements.

¢ The “Industry Overviews” and “Course Progression Charts”
for different industries have been uploaded onto the ERB
website. Hard copies have been prepared for distribution [{TEME | NAREITEMR - AFTIEE - T

%*«'//""‘;'r:'

. . . . Lk £ AT

to training bodies, employer associations, trade unions and o BAMBES
fassi . The “Industry Overviews” covered background
pro essional organisations. information of the industry, entry requirements, work

challenges and career pathway.
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In the light of ageing population and Government’s
initiative of “Ageing in Place”, the ERB conducted a
study on home care services for senior citizens.

Strengthening Research for Planning of Courses

In planning training courses and services to address the needs of the society, the ERB
made reference to Government’s policies on manpower and training. The ERB collected
and compiled labour market information, including the training needs of different target
groups and industries.

¢ To gauge the employment and retention status of trainees upon
their graduation as well as the level of users’ satisfaction, the ERB
conducted a number of surveys on placement outcome, training
effectiveness and users’ opinions.

¢ In the light of ageing population and Government'’s initiative of
“Ageing in Place”, the ERB conducted a study on home care services
for senior citizens. Findings of the study provided useful information
for the ERB to prepare for the development of relevant training
courses and services.

¢ Findings of the “Study on the Effectiveness of ERB Training Courses
and Services” revealed that the majority of employers and trainees
surveyed were satisfied with the effectiveness of the courses and
services of the ERB. Details are available on pages 96 to 97.
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Under the enterprise-based training arrangements, enterprises may flexibly
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Introducing Enterprise-based Training Arrangements

To motivate enterprises to provide enterprise or industry-based skills upgrading training to their
employees, the ERB introduced the enterprise-based training arrangements in October 2012. Training
bodies were encouraged to collaborate with employers or trade associations to provide in-service
training for their employees or members.

¢ Under the enterprise-based training arrangements, enterprises may flexibly choose the time and
venue of training. The related application procedures for trainees are also substantially stream-lined.

e Pursuant to ERB's policy, trainees of half-day or evening courses are required to pay course fees
according to their level of income. Trainees with no income or low income are eligible respectively
for fee waiver or subsidies. Under the enterprise-based training arrangements, all course fees are
payable by the employers.

e In 2012-13, 19 training courses, for some 330 employees of 11 enterprises were organised under
the enterprise-based training arrangements. They covered employees of the retail, beauty therapy,
property management & security, real estate agency, environmental services and hotel industries.

-
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Enhancing Placement Follow-up Services

Placement follow-up services of three months or above are provided by the training bodies of the
ERB to trainees who have completed full-time placement-tied training courses. Placement officers of
the training bodies provide vacancy information and assist trainees to choose suitable vacancies with
reference to their experience, skills, job aptitudes and expectations.

e For the 77 full-time placement-tied courses with “Enhanced Placement Services”, extended
placement and retention services will be provided by the training bodies to trainees for a period of
six months, with a view to helping them land on a job and sustain in employment.

e To enhance the quality of placement services, the ERB organises from time to time workshops for
placement officers of training bodies, to familiarising them with the requirements of the ERB and
improve their service quality.

e Placement rate is one of the performance indicators for evaluating the
effectiveness of the full-time placement-tied training courses. In 2012-
13, the placement rate of graduate trainees was 81% which was higher
than the target performance level of 70%.

e The ERB conducted sampling surveys on regular
basis to obtain feedbacks from trainees placed into
employment on the quality of placement services.
According to the surveys conducted in 2012-13,
83% of the trainees were “satisfied” or “very
satisfied” with the placement services offered
by the training bodies.
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Placement follow-up services of three months or above are provided

by the training bodies of the ERB to trainees who have completed

full-time placement-tied training courses.
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The system of practical assessments was enhanced from time to time.

Implementing a “Comprehensive Annual Audit System”

The ERB continuously improved its quality assurance measures and introduced a “Comprehensive
Annual Audit System”, which extended the scope of monitoring to include more performance aspects
of training bodies and imposed a higher standard of assessment.

e The ERB introduced a “Comprehensive Annual Audit System” which consolidated outcomes of
different monitoring measures including on-site audits, surprise class inspections and class visits.
The objective is to reflect the overall performance of training bodies in assuring the quality of
training courses.

e The system of class visits, the guidelines on course-end written and practical assessments, and the
guidelines and mechanism for handling and reporting complaints by training bodies were enhanced
from time to time. A mechanism for handling irregularities of training bodies and instructors was
also rolled out.
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Introducing the “ERB Baby"” and Strengthening Relevant Training and
Assessment Services

To meet the ever-increasing demand for post-natal care services and ride on the opportunities rendered
by the Year of the Dragon, the ERB introduced a new baby model — “ERB Baby” — to mimic a new-born
baby for purposes of practical skills training and assessment. This would help enhance the quality and
professionalism of trainees, and boost the confidence of employers in engaging graduate trainees.

e Owing to the effect of the Year of the Dragon, the number of trainees who had undertaken
practical skills assessment on post-natal care reached 22,334, an increase of 38%.

¢ In 2012-13, training rendered under the “Certificate in Post-natal Care Worker Training”, the
“Certificate in Infant and Child Care Worker Training” and the “Module Certificate in Infant Care”
courses entailed the use of the “ERB Baby”.

e The new "ERB Baby" can better mimic a new-born baby in terms of appearance
and texture. Its use helps strengthen infant care skills of trainees and raise their
safety awareness. Assessors are also able to make more
precise observations on the performance of trainees in
the course of assessment.
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The use of “ERB Baby” helps strengthen infant care skills
of trainees and raise their safety awareness. Assessors
are also able to make more precise observations on the
performance of trainees in the course of assessment.
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Extending National Occupational Qualification Assessment

To meet market demands, the ERB collaborated with Guangdong Occupational Skill Testing Authority
to launch different kinds of National Occupational Qualification Assessment to help trainees obtain
national occupational qualifications and open up more employment opportunities.

¢ A total of eight full-time placement-tied courses leading to National Occupational Qualifications
were offered in the form of through-train service comprising free training, assessment and
certification. As of March 2013, 891 trainees had enrolled in such courses and 848 of them had
successfully obtained the National Occupational Qualifications.

¢ The eight courses leading to National Occupational Qualifications offered training on Junior Beautician,
Junior Cook of Dim Sum and Chinese Pastry, Junior Cook of Chinese Dishes, Junior Cook of Roasted
Food, Junior Cook of Western Dishes, Junior Marketing Personnel, Junior Healthcare Masseur and
Intermediate Logistics Practitioner respectively.

e Effective from June 2007, the Practical Skills Training and Assessment Centre administered the
National Occupational Qualification Assessment for the Healthcare Masseur. By March 2013, 351
trainees had undertaken the assessment, and 304 of whom successfully obtained the National
Occupational Qualifications.
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The ERB collaborated with Guangdong
Occupational Skill Testing Authority to launch
different kinds of National Occupational
Qualification Assessment to help trainees
obtain national occupational qualifications.

F
-w EEHBIEIE Employees Retraining Board




ZHRIERTE - HBHEERS

ABE RSO EREEEE SRR ELETER (FER) ORENE LWL ERBEND

A TR RIBORTN - LHHRED B ISR -

o EER - ARZHT BTRTET [FRB ) OREHE

« AREHERERNEESSHABESHIAY  MAOMABEERNBBNREN B EE
85 | By RAE -

o ABRFERIAME - UEAKENH DR BEABE IS V544 -

Arranging Accreditation of Courses and

Promoting Life-long Learning

The ERB had arranged around 540 courses for programme validation by the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (“"HKCAAVQ") for recognition under the
Quialifications Framework (QF). This would ensure public acceptance of the courses and facilitate
continuous learning on the part of the graduate trainees.

¢ In 2012-13, the ERB arranged 28 courses for programme validation by the “HKCAAVQ".

e The ERB and the Federation for Self-Financing Tertiary Education, which was commissioned by the
Education Bureau, organised jointly a workshop to brief the representatives of 40 training bodies of
the ERB on the concept and application of the “QF Credit”.

¢ In conjunction with the "HKCAAVQ", the ERB worked out a set of stream-lined procedures to
facilitate training bodies of the ERB to apply for the “Initial Evaluation”status.
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Training Network
A Massive Training Network

The ERB established the largest training network in Hong Kong, coordinating the efforts of 126
training bodies to provide training courses and services.

¢ The training bodies are of different background, including professional educational institutions, district
organisations, trade unions/labour organisations, veteran training bodies of various industries, and
organisations specialised in serving special target groups such as new arrivals, persons with disabilities,
persons recovered from work injuries, etc.

e Over 420 training centres operated by 126 training bodies situate all over the 18 administrative
regions of Hong Kong and address promptly to the training needs of the community.

B #8748 800 IHR 12
REHH BB S00IERE » MEM30EITESE - A2EREZ TLHEIEE -

o REATEERBINER ARBNACENZEGR) BERAFE BENRARIE] AEHRE
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To provide trainees with a wide variety of
training options, the ERB offered over 800
training courses which straddled nearly 30
industries.
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Offering Over 800 Training Courses

To provide trainees with a wide variety of training options, the ERB offered over 800 training courses
which straddled nearly 30 industries.

¢ To dovetail with the development of the Qualifications Framework, the ERB endeavoures to
develop with reference to the Specifications of Competency Standards (SCS) a series of SCS-based
courses. Credit values will also be assigned to courses to facilitate trainees in acquiring recognised
gualifications through the accumulation of credits.

¢ 63 courses offered by the ERB enabled trainees to fulfill the requirements for continuing professional
development of the respective industries or to obtain relevant qualifications required for entry into
specific jobs.

e The ERB offered 28 “one-test-two-certificates”” courses and 31 examination-preparatory courses

to equip trainees to sit for public professional examinations or industry certification assessments.

¢ In tandem with Government's initiative of “Caring for the Elderly”, the ERB launched a number
of “Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus” (SUS Plus) courses of the healthcare industry to assist serving
employees to raise their skill level.

e To address the changes in market demand for post-natal care workers, the ERB enhanced the
training contents of the “Certificate in Post-natal Care Worker Training” course and introduced a
number of related SUS Plus courses.

* [ RE LR A B B E A KT ERE BB BRI IRZ S, - BRIBBIAGNZ RN - ATRREIARITER
OB R BREEES -
“One-test-two-certificates” courses adopt public professional examinations or skills assessments of relevant industries as the final examination
of the courses. Trainees who have passed the relevant professional certification examinations could obtain both the professional recognition of
the trade and ERB certificates.
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The ERB promotes courses and services targeting the
ethnic minorities through various promotions.
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Serving the Special Target Groups

The ERB offered a variety of courses and services for special target groups (including youths, persons
with disabilities and persons recovered from work injuries, ethnic minorities, new arrivals and
rehabilitated ex-offenders).

e The ERB launched two “Employment Set Sail for Youth” courses targeting secondary school
graduates who wished to seek employment but did not possess of full-time work experience. The
courses aimed at assisting them to acquire industry-recognised qualifications so as to enhance their
employability.

e The ERB set up a “Focus Group on Training for Persons with Disabilities and Persons Recovered
from Work Injuries” to better gauge and address the training and employment needs of
the target group. The Focus Group comprised representatives of government departments,
training bodies, social service sector and employers.

e The ERB developed dedicated training courses for the ethnic minorities. To explore the training and
employment needs of the ethnic minorities and to promote to them the courses and services of the
ERB, the ERB convened regular meetings with the “Focus Group on Training for Ethnic Minorities”
which comprised representatives of ethnic minority groups, social service organisations and other
stakeholders. The ERB also paid visits to ethnic minority communities and organisations rendering
services to the target groups.

Py
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District Network
Developing District Networks

The ERB piloted a district networking project in the three districts where its service centres were
situated (i.e. Kwun Tong, Shum Shui Po, Yuen Long and Tin Shui Wai). The service focus was
formulated with reference to the characteristics of the concerned districts.

e The ERB liaised with the District Offices of the three districts and attended meetings of the relevant
committees of the District Councils to introduce the services of the ERB and the work plan for
development of district networks. Opportunity was taken to gauge the opinions of the district
councilors and district residents.

e The ERB established dialogue with district organisations and social service organisations to
understand the training needs of the residents and explore collaborative efforts to address the
needs and disseminate information on training courses offered by the ERB to the community.

* The ERB organised in conjunction with District Councils and district organisations activities with
district-based features to connect with the training and employment needs in the districts.

RBEME A THE  FREHEL  WEEM
@AM AT AR = 2 -

The ERB liaised with various stakeholders in the regions
for development of district networks. The service focus
was formulated with reference to the characteristics of
the concerned districts.
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Sponsoring Training Bodies to Launch District-based Promotion

The ERB administered two funding schemes to encourage training bodies of the ERB to launch district-
based promotional activities.

Industry Service Programme

e The ERB sponsored 21 training bodies to organise 115 district-based industry exhibitions and
recruitment activities for 205 employers in order to promote the prospects, job requirements and
promotion ladder of different industries.

e The main objectives of the activities were to assist graduate trainees of the ERB to secure suitable
jobs, and facilitate members of the public to enrol in ERB courses.

e The activities attracted 6,000 participants. Of them, some 1,200 were employed and about 900
enrolled in ERB courses.

Funding Programme for Training Courses and Services

¢ In collaboration with district organisations, the training bodies organised 37 district-based activities
to increase the awareness of the residents, including special target groups, of the work of the ERB
and encourage them to enrol in ERB courses.

e About 70,000 people participated in these activities, with over 2,500 enrolled in ERB courses.
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Youth Training and Employment Expo

To increase the training and employment opportunities of young people, the ERB organised the “Fun
at Work"”— Youth Training and Employment Expo in November 2012.

The event targeted young people aged 15 to 29 and aimed to introduce the prospects and
employment opportunities of nine industries, including tourism, hotel, entertainment & performing
arts, retail, beauty therapy, information & communications technology, healthcare services, catering
and club-house management, as well as information of relevant ERB courses.

The event featured sharing sessions by experts on job interview skills and career planning, and
talks by veteran practitioners of the hotel and information & communications technology industries
on job search. Besides, the “Tourist Guide Uprising Star Competition” and “ERB Trainees Skills
Performance” were held to showcase the diversity and professionalism of ERB courses to members
of the public.

14 training bodies of the ERB disseminated information on ERB courses and arranged on-site
enrolments. 106 employers put up some 7,300 job vacancies for display. Over 2,500 people participated
in these activities.

RIESFARZII R ERES - RNERMR L] HE[K]FF
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To increase the training and employment opportunities of young
people, the ERB organised the “Fun at Work”— Youth Training and
Employment Expo. Over 2,500 people participated in the activities.

EEHBIEIE Employees Retraining Board
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training and employment needs.

Support Network
ERB Service Centres

As the district-based windows to the courses and
services of the ERB, the "ERB Service Centres” . HE

offer diversified services, including the training E J

consultancy service, to those with training and

employment needs. F AL P e N

e The ERB set up three "ERB Service Centres”
respectively in Sham Shui Po, Kwun Tong and Tin
Shui Wai. These Centres offered a wide range of
support services with training and employment
as the first and second priorities.

e As at March 2013, the three Service Centres
registered over 30,000 members, and
more than 930,000 people made use of
their facilities and services.
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Training Consultancy Service
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Training consultants assessed the career aspirations and
training needs of interested people through personal
interviews, and assisted them to enrol in ERB courses.

Training consultants of the ERB stationed at the three “ERB Service Centres” provided personalised
support service to interested people and recommended suitable ERB courses for their consideration.
They also actively liaised with district organisations to develop social networks with a view to

achieving synergy.

¢ Training consultants provided over 1,640 sessions of consultations and support services. They
assessed the career aspirations and training needs of interested people through personal interviews,

and assisted them to enrol in ERB courses.

e Training consultants also proactively updated people enrolled in ERB courses of recent

developments on the training front.

e Training consultants actively liaised with district organisations, social service organisations and
secondary schools to identify the needs of different social groups. In 2012-13, they organised 56
seminars and workshops to promote awareness of the courses and services of the ERB.

E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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Smart Living Scheme

The “Smart Living Scheme” is a one-stop referral platform which provides free job matching and
referral services for domestic employers and graduate trainees of relevant ERB courses.

e In 2012-13, over 47,000 job vacancies were registered under the “Smart Living Scheme”, and
some 30,000 of which were filled.

¢ The average hourly rate for Smart Helpers increased to $67, as compared with $63 a year ago.

e Qver 4,700 job offers were received under the annual “Chinese New Year Cleansing Campaign”.
Of them, 91% were filled by ERB graduate trainees.

7
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The ERB promoted the annual
“Chinese New Year Cleansing
Campaign”.
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Smart Baby Care Scheme

Riding on the experience of the “Smart Living Scheme”, the ERB will launch the “Smart Baby Care
Scheme” in mid-2013 to address the changing needs of the market for post-natal care workers and
infant and child care workers. This will also help improve the service quality on a continuing basis.
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Industry Network
Strengthening the Consultative Networks with Industries

The participation of industries is of paramount importance in ensuring the acceptability and
professionalism of ERB courses. The ERB strives hard to foster partnership relations and strengthen
consultative networks with industries.

e The ERB set up 22 Industry Consultative Networks (ICNs) and appointed some 330 members
comprising representatives of relevant business organisations, trade unions, professional
associations, employers, as well as government departments.

¢ The ICNs furnished advice to the ERB on its course development with reference to the
developmental prospects and employment opportunities of the industries.

e The ICNs rendered assistance to the ERB in reviewing courses of different industries to ensure
that the training contents of the courses would match the needs and skills requirements of the
employment market.

¢ Members of the ICNs shared their knowledge on the latest developments of the industries at
seminars organised and in publications issued by the ERB. These helped promote the courses and
services offered by the ERB.

EEHBIEIE Employees Retraining Board
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The ERB organised thematic seminars under the
Scheme to strengthen strategic partnership with
the “Manpower Developers”.
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Accrediting “Manpower Developer”

The "ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme” is the first accreditation system to assess the level of
maturity of strategies and practices of manpower training and development of organisations in Hong
Kong. It aims to recognise organisations which demonstrate outstanding achievements in manpower
training and development as “Manpower Developers”.

¢ In the 3rd “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”, 55 organisations were awarded the status of
“Manpower Developers” and the status of 76 organisations as “Manpower Developers” was renewed.
A presentation ceremony was held in April 2012 and officiated by the Hon. Matthew CHEUNG
Kin-chung, GBS, JP, Secretary for Labour and Welfare, Mr. Paul TANG Kwok-wai, JP, Permanent
Secretary for Labour and Welfare, as well as the Chairman,

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director of the ERB. P
-' {MD Magazine) - 5 [ A
e By 2012-13, a total of 187 public and private organisations WELEIHE ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁbﬂf"m .
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To respond to the “Three-year Strategic Plan”, the ERB publishes
various promotional materials and advertisements to promote its

courses and services.
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Formulating the “Three-year Strategic Plan”

With effect from 2012-13, the ERB formulates on a rolling basis a “Three-year Strategic Plan” to set out the
future direction of the ERB as well as new initiatives with respect to its courses and services.

¢ The main objectives of the “Three-year Strategic Plan” for 2012-13 to 2014-15 were as follows:
— to respond timely to the needs of the society and the employment market;

— to assist trainees map out their progression ladders and enhance their employability and
competitiveness in the employment market;

— to provide convenient and appropriate services; and
— to enhance the professionalism and acceptability of the training courses.
e The ERB will step up its work in research and analysis, including:

— undertaking studies on the potential manpower demand of the health care and domestic
services industries in the light of the ageing population;

— evaluating the training and employment needs of the new arrivals to facilitate development of
suitable courses.

e The ERB will foster the continued development of the consultative and partnership networks,
including:

— preparing “Course Progression Charts” for different industries in collaboration with ICNs;

— with the help of the three "ERB Service Centres”, developing on a pilot basis district networks
to advocate the principle of “training and employment in the same district”.

e The ERB will emphasise on the provision of skills training and employment support for jobs with
market potentials, including post-natal care and home elderly care services.

¢ The ERB will help enhance the understanding of the secondary school leavers of the world of work
and facilitate their access to social resources through the implementation of the “Learn and Leap —
Teen’s Action 2013". This will allow them to better plan for their own future.

e The ERB will develop new training courses leading to professional certifications and National
Occupational Qualifications.

¢ The ERB will continue to enhance the quality and credibility of the standardised skills assessment
services; strengthen quality assurance measures including class visits, observations of skills
assessments and surprise inspections, so as to upgrade the quality and effectiveness of training
courses and services.

e The ERB will undertake a series of improvement measures, including enhancement of course
administration and monitoring; setting up of a “Smart Living On-line” system; development of a
new corporate website, and strengthening of the system of internal governance.
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Strengthening Administrative Controls to Ensure Sound Governance

The Internal Audit Section has been set up to undertake independent internal audits. The Section
evaluates the effectiveness of internal controls, and monitors the operation of various departments to
ensure their compliance with the relevant statutory regulations, and established policies, procedures
and guidelines of the ERB on operational and financial matters.

e The Internal Audit Section conducts internal audit exercises in accordance with approved audit
plan; submits audit reports to the Audit Committee; and recommends improvement measures.

e In 2012-13, the Internal Audit Section completed internal audit exercises “Information Security
Management for the R-NetX System” and “Training Places Allocation Process”.
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Appointing the New Chairman of the ERB

Under the Employees Retraining Ordinance, the ERB shall comprise representatives of employers,
employees, persons connected with vocational training and retraining or manpower planning and
government officials, under the leadership of the Chairman.

¢ The Government announced on 25 January 2013 the appointment of Mr. William LEUNG Wing-cheung,
BBS, JP, as the Chairman of the ERB for the period from 15 January 2013 to 31 March 2015.

EEHBIEIE Employees Retraining Board
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Injecting $15 billion into the Employees Retraining Fund

Levy on employers of foreign domestic helpers had been the major source of funding of the ERB.
The Chief Executive announced in his Policy Address of 16 January 2013 the abolition of the Levy.
To provide sustained and stable financial support for the ERB, the Financial Secretary proposed in
his 2013-14 Budget Speech on 27 February 2013 the injection of $15 billion into the Employees
Retraining Fund so that it can continue to enhance the productivity of local workers.

e The ERB welcomes the injection by the Government. It demonstrates the importance accorded
by the Government to manpower training and its long-term commitment to enhancing the
productivity of local workers.

e The ERB will continue to strive to provide suitable training courses and services to the public in a
timely manner.
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@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board

REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF EMPLOYEES RETRAINING BOARD

(Established in Hong Kong under the Employees Retraining
Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Employees Retraining
Board (the “Board”) set out on pages 64 to 85, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2013, and the income and
expenditure account, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Responsibilities of the Members of the Board for
the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control
as the members of the Board determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 11(2) of the Employees
Retraining Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Board’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the members of the Board, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the Board's affairs as at 31 March 2013, and of its

deficit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Board for the year ended 31
March 2012 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 28 November 2012.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 November 2013
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

HZE2013F3A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2013

[N Income
BRI Levy income 758,955 1,084,800
FEWA Interest income 34,481,606 47,559,253
ARIZBERA Course fee income 5,897,814 5,325,214
E A Other income 6 427,888 12,407,124
41,566,263 66,376,391
TH Expenditure
BZ3IERL Retraining allowances 7 (73,713,124) (72,440,711)
T8 MRS Training programme and course 8
expenses (647,457,759) (613,150,579)
MAIE S5 R s EE B Administrative fees charged by
BAZRITINE the Immigration Department
for the collection of levy (4,827,667) (5,028,387)
THAX Administrative expenses (96,420,874) (101,912,322)
HhFA Other expenses (823,011) (464,517)
(823,242,435) (792,996,516)
W ATF N EE Deficit before taxation (781,676,172) (726,620,125)
Frig it Taxation 9 N B}
FAEE Deficit for the year 10 (781,676,172) (726,620,125)

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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M2013F3A31H
At 31 March 2013
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Non-current assets
Property and equipment 12
Rental and utility deposits 13

Deposits paid for leasehold
improvements

Current assets

Receivables, deposits and 13
prepayments

Amounts due from training bodies 15

Bank balances and deposits 14

— Cash and cash equivalents

— Bank deposits with maturity
over three months

Current liabilities

Accrual and other payables

Amounts due to training bodies 15
Amounts due to the Immigration 15
Department

Net current assets
Net assets
Fund

Employees Retraining Fund

4,642,893 8,107,621
1,616,877 1,156,469
36,502,959 -
42,762,729 9,264,090
15,567,129 45,810,571
2,998,457 1,196,056
52,886,951 665,346,172

1,974,109,000

2,170,360,000

2,045,561,537

2,882,712,799

48,731,852 71,293,152
2,478,233 2,431,522
4,821,338 4,283,200

56,031,423 78,007,874

1,989,530,114 2,804,704,925
2,032,292,843 2,813,969,015
2,032,292,843 2,813,969,015

\

BEEIIREESBHRERE - 1N2013F 11 A28 BHUTRREE :

The financial statements on pages 64 to 85 were approved and authorised for issue by the members of the
Employees Retraining Board on 28 November 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

k3 William LEUNG Wing-cheung

/& Chairman

KKK Stanley NG Ka-kwong

1TER4EE Executive Director

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report



T

Financial Statements

2 & E’%

ﬁi&@]ﬁ HE2013F3A31HIEEFE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND For the year ended 31 March 2013

REEBEIIES

Employees Retraining Fund

B HKS

R2011F4H1H At 1 April 2011 3,540,589,140

FRER Deficit for the year (726,620,125)

M20126F3H31H At 31 March 2012 2,813,969,015

FERNER Deficit for the year (781,676,172)

20133 A31H At 31 March 2013 2,032,292,843

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year

ended 31 March 2013
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficit for the year
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation of property and
equipment
— Interest income
— Impairment losses recognised
in respect of course fee income
receivables and other receivables
— Loss on disposal of property and
equipment
Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Increase in amounts due from training
bodies
(Decrease) increase in accrual and other
payables
Increase in amounts due to the
Immigration Department
Increase in amounts due to training
bodies
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of property and equipment

Decrease in short-term bank deposits
with maturity over three months

Increase in deposits paid for leasehold
improvements

NET CASH FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

Represented by bank balances and cash

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash

(781,676,172)

3,960,728
(34,481,606)

1,882,906

(726,620,125)

6,812,381
(47,559,253)

1,911,205

547

(810,314,144)

(765,455,245)

21,028,352 (14,097,916)
(1,802,401) (1,007,788)
(22,561,300) 10,531,105
538,138 4,297,600
46,711 746,594
(813,064,644) (764,985,650)
41,353,382 44,491,783
(496,000) (8,967,093)
196,251,000 1,235,169,700

(36,502,959)

200,605,423 1,270,694,390
(612,459,221) 505,708,740
665,346,172 159,637,432
52,886,951 665,346,172
52,886,951 665,346,172

J

2012-13 EEFR

Annual Report @



T

Financial Statements

Bt F5 Rk RE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board

HE2013F3A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2013

ORGANISATION AND ACTIVITIES

The Employees Retraining Board (the “Board”) is a body
corporate established under the Employees Retraining
Ordinance (“ERO") 1992 for the purpose of providing
training and retraining services for people aged 15 or above
and with an education attainment at sub-degree or below. It
is mainly funded by Employees Retraining Levy by employers
who employ imported employees.

In accordance with Section 14 (1), Section 14 (2) and Schedule
3 of the ERO, a specified levy known as the Employees
Retraining Levy (the “levy”) was imposed on those employer
importing employees under the Labour Importation Scheme
and was payables in advance for the two-year contract
period. The levy was charged at a rate of HK$400 per
month for each imported employee. From 1 October 2003
onwards, employers who employ, or renew a contract with,
a foreign domestic helper, would also have to pay the levy.
However, effective from 1 August 2008, the obligation on
employers of imported employees to pay the levy for new
and renewed contracts has been suspended for a period of
five years up to 31 July 2013. The levy received or receivable
in the suspension period relates to the contracts entered into
before 1 August 2008.

The address of registered office and principal place of
operation of the Board is Room 5206, 52/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is same as the functional currency of the Board.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Board has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective
for the Board's financial year beginning on 1 April 2012.

BRI BB BImEERIE 75
Amendments to HKFRS 7

TR TARE -BEoREE

Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

1R B EMTEREERZE 12558
Amendments to HKAS 12

RIERE - WEEAEE
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

RAFEER LR ETAEBEIR
RAGTFEIBESTFENHE
BRUWEBATE -

BEIIRRAS B EEY EIEFRA
AT BRI E AR ARz #ra] Mg {e
R BB MERER] - BRI AR

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material effect on the Board's
financial statements for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in the financial statements.

The Board has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

CHES L =
Amendments to HKFRSs

£12009 F £ 2011 FHIMM HRE LR 2 FEUAE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle'

BRI BB EMEERIE 757
Amendments to HKFRS 7

WEE - BiHeRMEEREREBE
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

BRI BB IEREERE IR RE 75
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

BB ELERSE 9 5% KRB REE AR H 1A A HA
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures?

BRI BB EHREERIZE 105 - F11
SRR 1258

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

BHMTERE - KRZHFINE B R 2 R

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance'

BRI B BMBMELAE 105 - F£12
KRB GETEBE 275
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

REER?

Investment Entities?

BAEMBWELERE 5
HKFRS 9

TRITA?

Financial Instruments?

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report @
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BBV BImELERIE 1057 BOtBERK

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements’

BB EERIZE 158 HREIZHE

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’

BB ISImELERIE 12 5% HtBRER I HE

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

BB ELERE 135 NHERE!

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’

BEGEHEEE 195 (R 2011 F4 EERHN

1&31)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits'

BREGEERFSE 2755 (R 2011 48 B B RR

fE&T)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements'

EAGETEHESE 285 (R 2011 48 REtE R B REEREZRE!

1&71)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'

CHE R AR 2 HEMEEKEEIER ¢

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Iltems of Other Comprehensive Income*
BRI BB G HEBE 325, HitemEEREHARE?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities?

BRI BB G EBE 365 WEFeRAEEN SR 2 #ER?

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets?
CHES R EErE PTETEMES RIEEE g HE?

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting?
BEMBRERBZE®E 205 BE AR M B 2 FIERAAR

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine'
EEMBRERBEESF 215 BB

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies?

1. R20134 1 A 1 Bl LA 1A R 2 FIEEIRAN

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

2. R20144F 1 A1 HE LA G162 G BRI 434

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

3. R20154 1 A1 BB 152 FEERIEX

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

4. R20124€7 A1 B AERIH 2 FEE R A

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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The members of the Board anticipate that the application
of the above new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Board.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis and in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business.

— Levy income is recognised upon notification from the
Immigration Department of its receipt from employers of
imported labour.

— Course fee income is recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the course, determined as the proportion
of the total time expected to complete the course at the
end of the reporting period.

— Accreditation grant from Education Bureau is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income from a financial assets is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Board
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to the asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report @
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@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment, over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of property and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the balance sheet when the Board becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Board's financial assets are classified as loan and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including receivables and deposits, amounts due
from training bodies and bank balances and deposits) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

¢ breach of contract, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report a
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through income and expenditure account to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

Debts are classified in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fee and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premium or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accrual and other payables and
amounts due to training bodies and the Immigration Department)
are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Derecognition

The Board derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in the income and expenditure account.

The Board derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Board's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the income and expenditure
account.

Impairment of asset

At the end of the reporting period, the Board reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the income and expenditure account.

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report @
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Board as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Board has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Board will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Provisions, including those arising from
the contractual obligation specified in the service concession
arrangement to maintain or restore the infrastructure
before it is handed over to the grantors, are measured at
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.
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a. EMTHSE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is funded mainly by Employees Retraining Levy.
The Board members manage its funds to ensure that the
Board will be able to continue as a going concern. The
Board’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

SREE Loans and receivables

ERMEER (BRRE M

(including cash and cash

REEEY) equivalents) 2,041,170,415 2,868,998,115
THBE
# Rk AN st Financial liabilities at amortised cost 46,055,507 68,469,804

b. MEEAKREEBERBUER

BEJIBNE /T ARIERYGE
NigE - RIS I 2308 - iR
TR FRR - RN SR M E e
3R e IR 2 0B K A
ANEEB R A » FAIB R Dt
TR TADWEEABNE - 518
FIBBURES Lt Bt T AR AR
RN TX - BIFJIRZEEENR
BB R - REREE 21
BEAS A KBS RGBT T ©

. J/

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies

TheBoard’s major financial instrumentsinclude receivables
and deposits, amounts due from training bodies, bank
balances and deposits, accrual and other payables,
amounts due to training bodies and the Immigration
Department. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The members of
the Board manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report @



T

Financial Statements

EEREE

BB B AR B B A T
EAGEEAERNEEAR -
(EEERE B R A FRERTHY
-

HRETHRESBERESFR
WRERTREENFRRT
RBESNEERBRAR

% AR
R

BRllRzRSRENEERE
ZREBFBHTHHROIRITFR
(RHE14) - BIFIIRLLHE
BITETEAGHNREMRSRE
MERRE - BEEEANRER
ERk  BEINIRZE S LEM
BRI REVEE 2 i AR KR

TREN R -

HBEDHT

INTS#RES T IABEIRZ
FENIRITIF A R R e A%
BT WBBRESWZHETIR
EHMEHKRREECEERAR
CRENBEFEHREH -S0&
25 (20124 : S0EZ,) ZRIEH
BIREERME Al BEE
B {EL 2 51 ©

EFE LA S0EE (20124  50E
o) - MEMEEHRIFE - BiE
JEEHE2013F3A3MBLFE
2 FNEE g AT 10,118,000
7L (20124 : #7T.14,152,0007T) °
B R TES0EEE (20124 - 50E
2h) - BB RFRNEEEERES
BERAIRZ -

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board

Credit risk

The Board has no significant concentration of credit
risk on course fee receivables as the Board’s members
consider the amounts involved are insignificant.

The credit risk on deposits at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Board is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits which carried at
market interest rate (see note 14). The Board currently
does not use any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. However, the members
of the Board will consider appropriate measures to
manage and monitor interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rate from the Board’s variable-rate
bank deposits. The analysis is prepared assuming the
bank deposits outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2012: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used,
which represents member’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Board’s deficit for the year ended 31 March 2013
would decrease by approximately HK$10,118,000 (2012:
HK$14,152,000). An equal but opposite impact on
the Board's deficit for the year would be resulted if the
interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) lower.
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Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Board monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate

by the management to finance the Board's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The carrying amounts of the Board’s financial liabilities
represent the undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities which are repayable on demand or within one
year. All the financial liabilities are non-interest bearing.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from observable current market transactions.

The members of the Board consider that the carrying
values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate
to their corresponding fair values.

6. OTHER INCOME

st -

Note:

HE BRTEELR (KiFE) Accreditation grant from Education
Bureau (note) - 11,400,000
HIBUT A Sundry income 427,888 1,007,124
427,888 12,407,124
. J

WEEBREHE BIRE | BELESE B TR BE /B aEJRIEK Y AT B2 R R B ETEREITEE - UEE

HREAEL

The amount is granted by the Education Bureau to the Board, under the “Qualification Framework Support Schemes” upon
successful accreditation on the Board's training courses by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational

Qualifications, on a reimbursement basis.

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report @
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7. BIEHIER 7. RETRAINING ALLOWANCES
B ECRE B B &I 1K F) F2104) In accordance with Section 21(4) of the ERO, a specified
& BESLEBEI)NBRREEDNZ retraining allowance is payable to the trainees in respect of
8 EFAEUREBEINEL) %20 their attendance of training courses, subject to their eligibility
() IEFTH & R R B as set out in Section 20(1) of the ERO.
ERL o

8. BT EIRERIERMZ 8. TRAINING PROGRAMME AND COURSE

EXPENSES

EHIERRE Training courses 591,156,992 552,739,059
ERB AR Lx ERB Service Centres 20,890,599 18,587,246
B el R at a0 Practical Skills Training and

Assessment Centre 5,870,539 5,802,600
[ 4475 —f | Smart Living 11,181,038 10,973,294
SENEESE Promotion and publicity programmes 11,994,514 10,130,731
R E E IR Course quality assurance

programmes 1,091,952 10,768,005
HAtb Others 5,272,125 4,149,644

647,457,759 613,150,579
\ J
9. FAigi 9. TAXATION

RIBE T G B1) E 88k - BIFIIB The Board is exempted from profits tax under the provision of
BB Z GO T PAADIA - Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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10. DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

FABED R THIRIE

ZERRTEN &
e (fisk12)
FEUGRFZ BB UL A I B Ath FEU 5K

RERR
Vit titkn

BIRA  BREIEEEEASHH

— Fe REMER
— RIRAER

Deficit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation (note 12)

Impairment losses recognised in
respect of course fee income and
other receivables

Operating lease payments in respect
of rented premises

Staff costs, including key management
personnel compensation

— salaries and other benefits costs

— retirement benefits scheme
contributions

219,950
3,960,728

1,882,906

11,883,010

76,846,599

3,679,342

206,880
6,812,381

1,911,205

15,201,846

74,244,256

3,200,216
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1. BEIIREERTEEHEE 11. MEMBERS AND KEY MANAGEMENT
A EEr M PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
BEIIRZE LB WA EMH M - No remuneration were received by the members of the Board.
BEJENETEESEEhAaaFE - The key management of the Board refers to the five directorate
HITREEHEINRBEBY AL officers (2012: five directorate officers) of the Board having
(20124 : Afu) BEREBEEAE - authority and responsibility for planning, implementing and
I BN B4R FE LA M EE 108 © A controlling the activities of the Board. The key management
HEBBEMT - personnel’s emoluments are included in note 10 above. The

emoluments of these individuals were as follows:

N N2 = Bh Salaries and allowances 8,008,501 7,921,710
RIKS Pension costs 250,076 223,759
#mE & Provision for gratuities 705,042 721,745
8,963,619 8,867,214

\ J

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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201343 A31H
e
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FRME
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7201243 A31H
FRHE
HBRERF 4T 85
720133 A31H
AREE

720133 A318
72012463 A31H

12.

CoSsT

At 1 April 2011
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2012
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2013
DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2011
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals
At 31 March 2012
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals
At 31 March 2013
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

EARRREBABRRE NI FRITE

HEMRERE

Leasehold

improvements

B HKS

RARRE
Furniture
fixtures and
equipment

B HKS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

RE
Motor
vehicle

B HE HKS

24,648,527 6,306,527 - 30,955,054
8,020,793 610,300 336,000 8,967,093
(8,007,897) (167,537) - (8,175,434)
24,661,423 6,749,290 336,000 31,746,713

- 496,000 - 496,000
- (107,481) - (107,481)
24,661,423 7,137,809 336,000 32,135,232
19,530,141 5,471,457 - 25,001,598
5,963,368 765,013 84,000 6,812,381
(8,007,897) (166,990) - (8,174,887)
17,485,612 6,069,480 84,000 23,639,092
3,397,818 478,910 84,000 3,960,728
- (107,481) - (107,481)
20,883,430 6,440,909 168,000 27,492,339
3,777,993 696,900 168,000 4,642,893
7,175,811 679,810 252,000 8,107,621

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated
over their useful lives using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

HEMERE Leasehold improvements ERR RS HRE S

Over the remaining term of the leases
FIERH Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%
VAE Motor vehicle 25%

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report @
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13. BUIRRRIE -~ B2 RFEMAR

13.

RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

ek ARREES Rental and utility deposits 4,165,347 6,360,378
FE USRI 2, Interest receivables 5,906,036 12,277,812
JEWERIZERE N A Course fee income receivables 1,359,209 1,393,500
BB BRI TEE Y Accreditation grant receivables - 11,400,000
SEINEN Prepayment 5,719,220 14,871,153
E b EURGK Other receivables 34,194 664,197
17,184,006 46,967,040

W ERBE S R ARRERSE Less: non-current rental and utility
deposits (1,616,877) (1,156,469)
15,567,129 45,810,571

\ J

B ) YRR ~ 1R E RIEN R E
HA - 2B RBNEKEHEE

BB B4R 3R 5 7 B Uk FR8
F o BIEREES $HT674,2657T
(20123 A318 : &) REa#—FA8
FERERMEYIE - BEYIRTER
UL EWGRIE R B A AHE R - BFIB
ERAFEELR  BHEEE a8
B—F R EWGRIES HHE T 1,882,906
70 (20124 : 7870 1,911,2057T) °

14. SRITHEBR IR TR

IRITHEB R TFRBIERITHE LT
HAMB=-EAZEHETERAL
770 1,974,109,000 7T (2012 4F = & T
2,170,360,000 %) * EFFENTF001%
ZE1.72%(20124F : 0.01% £ 2.43%) °

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board

14.

The amounts of receivables, deposits and prepayments are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included in the Boards' receivables are receivable with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$674,265 (31 March 2012:
Nil) which are with past due within one year as at the reporting
date, and the Board has not provided for impairment loss.
The Board does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The Board has provided fully for all receivables overdue
more than one year, amounting to HK$1,882,906 (2012:
HK$1,911,205), because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond one year are generally
not recoverable.

BANK BALANCES AND DEPOSITS

Bank balances and deposits comprise bank balances and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or more HK$1,974,109,000 (2012: HK$2,170,360,000) and
carry interest at market rates which ranged from 0.01% to
1.72% (2012: 0.01% to 2.43%) per annum.



15.

16.

17.

FEUR (FEAT) &3I4 2 7008 15. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) TRAINING BODIES
REMAREREZMRIE AND AMOUNTS DUE TO THE IMMIGRATION
DEPARTMENT
FEUS (FEAT) 153|448 2 T8 R FEf A The amounts due from (to) training bodies and the amounts
REREREIFELAERRE  REKE due to the Immigration Department are unsecured, interest-
RERIFER o free and repayable on demand.
RBEIIBHEIR RS & fE UL 57| Included in the Board’s amounts due from training bodies do
Bz FoaEd - WEAED BB R not obtained balance with past due as at the reporting date,
BEHRIE - BB 5L FE YR and the Board has not provided for impairment loss. The
TERF A EER - Board does not hold any collateral over these balances.
REHEY 16. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

—FR Within one year 8,920,528 9,625,517
—Z2hRF Two to five years 4,740,629 12,042,416

13,661,157 21,667,933

. J
KEHEHSRERABRASETHA Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
ERRBFOEMOHES - HEMHHE Board for certain of its office premises and service centres.
EFRA—FERFAFE - Leases are negotiated for lease terms ranging from one to
five years.

BAEiE 17. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

D4 BAREHE Contracted but not provided for 4,519,712 37,230,000

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report a
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Statistics of Training Courses

FHIFIREBEREEAR

Number of Graduate Trainees

7,355 350 3,205

93-94 10,910

94-95 14,308 | 9,856 Lot 40,476

95-96 13,273 21,128 L 58,786

96-97 15,264 17,335 ~rii 55,370

97-98 18,425 15,082 riiki 55,632

98-99 29,171 16,078 2 69,856

99-00 37,661 17,704 vl 78,156

00-01 37,080 19,724 riarh 79,448

01-02 45,990 21,218 s 92,470
02-03 55,444 23,487 o 103,536
03-04 51,735 24,175 2y 98,595
04-05 49,803 28,456 22k 100,500
05-06 49,910 27,009 i 96,994
06-07 46,506 23,732 e 83,867

07-08 21,896 10,419 QAIRLAS
08-09 20,703 9,042 WA
09-10 22,061 Uocilen 94,288
10-11 24,015 L)t 90,923

11-12 28,572 4l 96,968

12-13 34,169 s 103,220

. =A% Full-time Course [ ¥ H#l Half-day Course [ BEME I Evening Course

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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Proportion of Graduate Trainees

RIE

Course Mode

AR
No. of Trainees

Eefl

Proportion %

2 HFIBL R RE

[ Full-time Placement-tied Course 46,187 44.7%
+ A BB ERIE

M Half-day Placement-tied Course 749 0.7%
B HIFER R R RIZ

™ Half-day Non-Placement-tied Course 33,420 32.4%
B i 1 IE ot SR 4 8RR A2

I Evening Non-Placement-tied Course 22,864 22.2%
# ¥ Total 103,220 100%

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report a
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Statistics of Training Courses

MEBHRESRTER
Statistics of Placement-tied Courses
MEHNRREXES AL

Proportion of Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses

SRR AR b1
Course Category No. of Trainees Proportion %
R IE R

[ Domestic Services 11,012 23.5%
VTR NRE

B Property Management & Security 7,481 15.9%
R

B Healthcare Services 4,060 8.6%
2%

I Beauty Therapy 4,027 8.6%
KE

I catering 3,287 7.0%
BIE

I Hotel 2,891 6.2%
S (RIE

I8 Chinese Healthcare 2,055 4.4%
[(EES
Business 2,022 4.3%
RIBRTE

B Environmental Services 1,436 3.1%
T8

I Retalil 1,318 2.8%
EAth

I Others 7,347 15.6%
#2 Total 46,936 100%

_FitEXRBETE 10 AR ZEZEE ARG RELS
The above chart lists the top 10 course categories according to the number of trainees.

EE/EEIBE Employees Retraining Board
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Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses by Education Level

BERE AR ]|
Education Level No. of Trainees Proportion %
REAZ

I No Schooling 6 0%
RITHNE

I Not Completed Primary Education 732 1.6%
NBRE

B Completed Primary 6 3,648 7.8%
th—Zeh =

[ Secondary 1to 3 17,463 37.2%
R ERR

I Secondary 4 to 5 17,237 36.7%
mREPL

I8l Secondary 6 to 7 4,654 9.9%
=EHE

I Tertiary Education 3,196 6.8%
# % Total 46,936 100%

REHBREEXZES B LA
Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses by Gender
5l AR He 451
Gender No. of Trainees Proportion %
22.4% B

I Male 10,530 22.4%

H eg i
Female 36,406 77.6%
# % Total 46,936 100%

77.6%
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REHUREERBEEFRIH

Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses by Age

Fg AR Ee 451
Age No. of Trainees Proportion %
7.5% 4.4%
12.5% [ 15-19 2,060 4.4%
M 20-29 5,893 12.5%
27.6% Bl 30-39 9,946 21.2%
[ 40-49 12,566 26.8%
[ 50-59 12,963 27.6%
21.2%

608 A
26.8% [ 60 or above 3,508 7.5%
4% Total 46,936 100%

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board
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Placement Rate of Placement-tied Courses

iy
Hotel

ENEY v

Domestic Services

BEREE

Construction & Renovation

#E
Electrical & Mechanical
Services

(R R EIE
Healthcare Services

MEERERRE
PropertyM anagement
& Security

e RIE
Chinese Healthcare

HEFE

Education & Recreation

eSS

Beauty Therapy

=&
Retail

24}
Total

e s61%
T 5589
. <1 7%
L 54.1%
] s3.9%
T 53.4%

L s3.0%

e 80.5%

E————— R

R, 75,9

W 81.3%

20% 40% 60% 80%

LA EIRBETE 10 E5RE B E MRS -

The above chart lists the top 10 course categories according to the placement rate.
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Statistics of Training Courses

MEHBMREFRR

Retention Rate of Placement-tied Courses

MEEERRR
PropertyM anagement | 756%

& Security

Healthcare Services 75.4%
e
Hotel 70.7%
AE N /-
Business 66.7%
R . - o
Chinese Healthcare 55.9%
R e ———
Domestic Services 54.8%
ES
seauty Therary I 5. 19,
e
ret, T .o
A
Al S

Catering

RARY N s 7
. (o}

Environmental Services

B
Total — 62.8%

20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

it ERFETE 10 R ZEREBEARAGZRIEEFN BB E (R BER TR EAE) -
The above chart lists the retention rate (after six months upon placement follow-up period) of the top 10 course categories according to the number
of graduate trainees.
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Industry Sector Profile of Graduate Trainees of Placement-tied Courses

47.8%

3.3%
4.6%

7.2%

11.5%

17545

Industry Sector

AR
No. of Trainees

el

Proportion %

g e REAREE

Community, Social and Personal

Services 18,232 47 8%
HE - MEBTEREGE
Real Estate, Property Management

M and Security Services 5,048 13.2%
BEREEE

B Wholesale and Retail 4,379 11.5%
R

I catering 2,735 7.2%
B %

H Hotel 1,771 4.6%
@b - R RS EREE
Finance, Insurance and Business

I services 1,245 3.3%
B - BERBE
Transport, Storage and
Communication 1,163 3.1%
BIEE

M Construction 1,064 2.8%
EHOBSY

[ Import and Export 995 2.6%
A >

[ Others* 1,489 3.9%
#2 Total 38,121 100%

* BREVREER  BORKE  BEFX  ARRRREER  URAMBESE -

* Includes Primary Production, Mining and Quarrying, Power, Textiles and Garments

Manufacturing, and other Manufacturing Industries.
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Statistics of Training Courses

EFRERRERTTEN
Statistics of Non-Placement-tied Courses
EMEHMBRELEE AXLH

Proportion of Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses

0.3% PRIZSER| AR el

Course Type No. of Trainees Proportion %

44.2% 37.7%

BARALIIRRTE — BRHEER
Generic Skills Training Courses —
I 1T Applications 21,191 37.7%

FARAEHIRRIZ — BEREX
Generic Skills Training Courses —
I8 workplace Languages 10,017 17.8%

[FTipetertatal | Ri2
“Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus”

Courses 24,893 44.2%
Eih
17.89 N
% I Others 183 0.3%
@B Total 56,284 100%

FRRHMREERBEHARED®

Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses by Education Level

HERE AR o451
Education Level No. of Trainees Proportion %
9.2%

REAE

1 No Schooling 49 0.1%

35.0% —

RITR B

I Not Completed Primary Education 1,419 2.5%
INBEREZE

B Completed Primary 6 5,202 9.2%
F-Eh=

[ Secondary 1to 3 19,682 35.0%
RUERT

[ Secondary4to 5 21,400 38.0%
RAREPRL

8l Secondary 6 to 7 4,761 8.5%
=EHE

I Tertiary Education 3,771 6.7%
#E Total 56,284 100%

a E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board



FRRHMREEREE B LA

Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses by Gender

4 5l AR net]]
Gender No. of Trainees Proportion %
19.7%
Bt
[ Male 11,082 19.7%
u 7
Female 45,202 80.3%
# ¥ Total 56,284 100%
80.3%
IMEHNEEEXEEFRSM
Graduate Trainees of Non-Placement-tied Courses by Age
F#R AR EE £
Age No. of Trainees  Proportion %
[ 1519 605 1.1%
M 20-29 5,034 8.9%
B 30-39 9,965 17.7%
B 40-49 14,228 25.3%
[ s0-59 17,493 31.1%
60 3 A =
[ 60 or above 8,959 15.9%
#e Total 56,284 100%
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[ ZRRERBEEARERAE &R

Findings of the “Study on the Effectiveness of
ERB Training Courses and Services”

ARERATELAERBATFNIALARERENZEHARRELRENER - UFHEEK - HAEEEIAR
2010 AE2012F 9 ABRERARRENEE R BEFLXZEENEIAHBELR - HEEREENT ¢

To evaluate the effectiveness of its courses and services, the ERB commissioned an independent research
agency to collect employers’ and trainees’ opinions on its training courses and services through telephone
interviews. The target respondents of the study were trainees who completed ERB training courses between
October 2011 and September 2012; and employers who hired these trainees. Findings of the study are
summarised as follows:

ZEERHBEAUTHIRR :

Surveyed employers opined that trainees had
the following performance:

ERIERRRYT 85%
Overall work performance is good °
THEREE /B R 86%
Good working attitude / Well-disciplined °
BReea LIS 819
Matched skills requirements °
4 \\\ ; I

/\B’%‘%%Tﬁz DRI | 80%
Good interpersonal skills
EREES=

AP 79%
High efficiency
BesmiEE TIFRE /8L 26%
Adapted to work environment / changes °

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board



SHESRARRAREMNRIFEEEBA TR :
Surveyed trainees opined that ERB training courses and
services achieved the following results:

ERYUMEEEY 84%
Generally helpful to employment ?
S| REFHE B H) B
o . o . 89%
Raised interest in continuing learning
STt E 2T .
Enhanced vocational skills 88%
BB ED 0
Boosted self-confidence 87%
E % "”E T
NE B IERTS | 869%
Improved soft skills
YL EATR R TIFRIBE L AR T 8
. 85%
Learned more about career prospect and work environment than before
EEEETIERE
. 85%
Enhanced work adaptability
HEoR H TIEHIR AR
. 82%
Enhanced commitment to work
Bk e
. i iy 79%
Enhanced job switching opportunities
HEoR B R e - 4%
Strengthened foundation skills

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report ﬁ



EEHT

Monitoring Mechanism

SR 1E E A ERwE | e
3EAIEREZ AR
. GRS MEER | pEme
. EEEERBHES . —pRE 70%
o EHFIERIZ 80%
o BRI T
ZBIER | DB
-Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%A@H& T
TAEREE 5
s | R o s
TFEERBEARSY
FEEREEE
. GEHYGREMNRE | BHEH BRgE(H I * 85%
o EERIEIFRIEME ZREE BEMNER* 80%
. EREEIBBHES ERE e T
R L WA F R
. GEBESEISNEIRE | POR
. BB AELIE BERERE | SRELRT - BH
RIEREIER BEREEE | BRREAR 05

BB S) 1 FRIE 1 BRI / RIS IR R RE AT
* FEARIER
“* RIERBEIEE

@ E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board



Purpose of Evaluation

Performance Measure

Effectiveness of Training Courses

e Measure effectiveness of
training courses

¢ Monitor performance of
training bodies (TBs)

e Measure efficiency in the
utilisation of ERB resources

e Measure cost effectiveness of
training courses

¢ Monitor performance of TBs

e Measure satisfaction of users
towards training courses

Placement results

Performance
Indicator

Placement rate*

Benchmark

® Regular courses 70%
e Tailor-made courses 80%
e Relevancy to N/A
training**
Retention results Retention rate**
e Trainees retained in N/A

employment after
six months upon
placement follow-up
period

Learning outcome

Course assessment

Cost Effectiveness

For graduation,
trainees must obtain
an overall pass in the
course assessments

Utilisation of training Capacity utilisation 85%

places rate*

Completion Attendance rate* 80%
Graduation rate** N/A

Training cost

Satisfaction of trainees

Unit cost

e Training cost per
trainee per hour

Customer Satisfaction

Survey results /
complaints

Satisfaction of employers

Survey results /
complaints

Places allocation
through competitive
bidding

The above figures will be analysed by class / course / TB / course type and the whole.

* Key performance indicator

** Currently not used as key performance indicator

2012-13 £E 3R Annual Report a



11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

27
28

NFHEEISH AR AR
IRABEEKIIEHS
TREZEZERAR]
MESRRERTS
CEEARRAT
AEERERBERQA]
FAMEEER — BREER
ENRIRI EARF R OB R A )
ZEFERAF
BEEITEet

MNES®

REEE IR

ESERR (T o ST

TSMNEBLBEREXRSZRERA

BB
YIREERTE
HeERMES
BEEEXER
BRERES
PREBBME
SEXREBRHEENR

X EREERAT]

EEABELEEDR

EETARERLERAR

TREIEMAS

EEHBIEIE Employees Retraining Board

5

The Cantonese Opera Academy of Hong Kong Limited
Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services
The Industrial Evangelistic Fellowship Limited

Chinese & Western Food Workers Union

Yan Oi Tong Limited

Tiptop Consultants Limited

Queen Elizabeth Hospital — Hospital Authority
Advanced Printing Technology Centre Limited

Ming Salon Limited

Vcare Information Centre

Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong

Fu Hong Society Training Department

Li Fai Centre of Wushu

Asian Academy for Sports and Fitness Professionals Limited
Youth Outreach

Logistics Cargo Supervisors Association

Social Resources Development Institute

YMCA College of Careers

Construction Industry Council

Jenny Beauty College

Royal International College

Asia Tree Preservation Limited

Farida Hair & Beauty Education Centre

British & American Floral Art School

Heung To College of Professional Studies

School of Professional And Continuing Education,
The University of Hong Kong

Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited

The Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions



29

30

31

32
33

34

35

36

37

38
39
40
41
42

43

44

45

46
47

48

49
50

51

52
53

BT XABEEHEES0
BRTEERERARAF
BRRAFABTRHEREERR
FELERLES
BRTEGRNEERAT]

FEREIREHES
FREENTER

BREENCGERBRFHRP L

B LRI I
ESEREERAT

B ERBLBAHEEERAR
BELERE

ERPE

EAEABSE
BAEANAENTAR
RS
L LSS L

FENMRELER
ERALTTE
BEREERMARR T HE
BRIKEEEEIT LARAR]
BRRERES

BERGARBHBHEDLEN
BEHER

BAAREREXBEEHRAF
BEBEERER

School of Continuing and Professional Studies,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Hong Kong College of Chinese Medicinal Nursing Limited

Li Ka Shing Institute of Professional and Continuing
Education, The Open University of Hong Kong

The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong
Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association Limited

Hong Kong Association for Democracy and People’s
Livelihood

Hong Kong Productivity Council

Hong Kong Productivity Council - Hong Kong Watch &
Clock Technology Centre

Hong Kong Eco-tourism & Travels Professional Training
Centre

Graphic Arts Association of Hong Kong Limited
Hong Kong Federation of Women Limited
Hong Kong Association of Gerontology

Caritas — Hong Kong

Hong Kong Society for the Blind

Hong Kong Air-conditioning and Refrigerating Trades
Workers General Union

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

School of Continuing and Professional Education,
City University of Hong Kong

Hong Kong Institute of Technology
Hong Kong Red Cross

Hong Kong Storehouses, Transportation & Logistics Staff
Association

Hong Kong Travel & Tourism Training Centre Limited
Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong

Division of Continuing and Professional Education,
School of Chinese Medicine, Hong Kong Baptist University

Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association Limited
Hongkong School of Commerce
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List of Appointed Training Bodies

54
55
56
57

58

59

60

61

62
63
64

65

66

67

68

69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

78

EBER BRI
EREERLTER
EARERETE
ERBLT DR

FRHEEFEXARRS

BRYE BB EHEERER AR

BRRIASBIXRHL
BARTIASCREEAT ERAL
BEEENE

BAEES

BT BER BT
BREEREETAMRE
BEEEE

FoEEHeaRAR

BEEOREERAT

BRENERNBE
FRERSMERE
AEEREXBERELEEER
BRI ERREERAT]
BERRBRERAR]
HoELHE

BEEHERTE

EEWETIEYPEBABTS

EEHBIEIE Employees Retraining Board

International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch)

Hong Kong Young Women'’s Christian Association
The Young Men's Christian Association of Hong Kong
Hong Kong Federation of Women’s Centres

Hong Kong Massage & Physiotherapy Professional
General Union

HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education
Limited

Industrial Centre, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Management and Executive Development Centre,
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power
The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation
Xianggang Putonghua Yanxishe

The Scout Association of Hong Kong — The Friends of
Scouting

The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong Association of Registered Tour Co-ordinators
Limited

The Hong Kong Marble & Granite Merchants Association,
Limited

Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre
Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council

Hong Kong St. John Ambulance

HKMA College of Further Education

Hong Kong Ballroom Dancing Council Limited

The Hong Kong School of Motoring Limited

The Hong Kong Association of Hair Design

Hong Kong Tour Guides General Union

Union of Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Engineering
Assistants



79

80

81
82
83
84
85

86

87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104

BEARBERER (RR)
ERREXTEHAE
BRI emR
HFEBEERRGEARAT]
BEMBRIHEERAT]
i S5l

HIRL TIRICX B e

BEMRREXARGE

EEYBBERS
EEYEITE
BIEEXER
TBBREH L
BERELEL SRR
BHLEHUREXR TS

BILEEREETERE (A/R) B8R
BNSTHERE
BHLERIREEXSMBIS
BEEBERAT]
EEHRTEESARAA]

EY TRIRSEE

RREBTRS
HERBRRMABRGE

PR REIE IR AL

Hong Kong Electrical & Mechanical College
(Evening School)

The Federation of Hong Kong Electrical & Mechanical
Industries Trade Unions

The Hong Kong Confederation of Trade Unions

Hong Kong Employment Development Service Limited
Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women's Association Limited
College of Nursing, Hong Kong

Fire and Security Engineering Employees Association

Association of Professional Personnel (Hotels, Food &
Beverage)

Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service

Knowledge Education Centre

PA Company Limited

The Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hongkong
Christian Action

Pui Ching Academy

Methodist Centre

Yang Memorial Methodist Social Service

Hong Kong and Kowloon Gold Ornaments and Jewellery
Trade Workers' Union

Hong Kong & Kowloon Restaurant & Cafe Workers General
Union Vocational (Day / Night) School

The Federation of Hong Kong and Kowloon Labour Unions

Hong Kong and Kowloon Electrical Engineering and
Appliances Trade Workers Union

HKCT Group Limited

Vassar International Chinese Medical Society Limited
Neighbourhood & Worker’s Service Centre

Eating Establishment Employees General Union

Kwan Sang Catering Professional Employees Association

Reach Profession Training Skills Development Centre
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ZEFIEBEE
List of Appointed Training Bodies

105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126

B EES

¥t B e BRI O BR AR

MREHEERAT]
ERgEREHRFL
EHREAE

it BB RRFOERAT]
HEomEEl —BkEER
ETBEARMAERHS
BERUER
SPPIRREXT SR
BREIIRB
BEELXTHE Bk
B % (B8) BRAR
memes

HRARBL KEFEHFEA L
HERABREEERR

BEL2RER
B

Bt 2 EEXRIE
BRiomEtne
BREERIIRT L

BRI ISR

DA S AT E RIS -

Training bodies are listed according to the number of strokes in Chinese.

L

E8HEIB/ Employees Retraining Board

New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

New Territories Association Retraining Centre Limited
New Home Association Limited

S. K. H. Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre
St. James’ Settlement

KCRA Community Education Enhancement Center Limited
Kwai Chung Hospital — Hospital Authority

Electronic Communication Technical Staff Union
Princess Margaret Hospital

Monita Hair & Beauty Academy

Clothing Industry Training Authority

Pivot Point College ... Hong Kong

Norray Enterprise (HK) Limited

The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council

Asia Pacific Institute of Ageing Studies, Lingnan University
Lingnan Institute of Further Education

Occupational Safety and Health Council

Vocational Training Council

Hospitals, Clinics and Nursing Workers Union
Hospital & Clinic Nurses Association

Leo Hair & Beauty Training Centre

Kwun Tong Vocational Training Centre
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L|st of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

RE{R# Chinese Healthcare

BE A Convenor RELREIIR Prof. Albert LEUNG Wing-nang
% 8 Members IR T & Mr. HO Ka-wing
AT AR ISR Prof. Sara HO Celine
RIEHEE Mr. Grant NG Wai-kit
FTARE A+ Ms. HUI Yin-hing
PRES R IE T Dr. CHAN Hok-yau
BABEL+ Ms. Elaine LO Yee-ling
EZEEEEI 6 Prof. PANG Wai-ming
HE L Mr. CHIU Chan-on
2B e 4 Mr. LAU Yiu-lap

BE A Convenor FRREE L Dr. Ringo LEE Yiu-pui
Z 8 Members ERFERAE, MH Mr. YUM Tai-ping, MH

L BIESRAE Mr. James KONG Yat-hung

Al S EHIX, MH Prof. Jackson HO Yee-tak, MH

= EAER S Mr. Stephen LUl Ming-kin

FHRIRLE Mr. LI Ying-ming

MEERAE Mr. LAM Hing-cheong

EERT A Mr. LING Chi-keung
RIRER T Mr. David YUEN Ping-hang FPVCB

RRIZRFKSE Mr. LEUNG Kai-tai

RRBEE Mr. MOK Ka-sing

PRIZSESEA4 Mr. CHAN Yan-ting

TAESE Mr. PANG Kong-cheung

RS8R TAZAM Ir FUNG Man-keung

\EinERE Mr. WONG Sui-wan

R S A Mr. WAN Hing-choy

BRSSEA Mr. LOUEY James Conrad

BEH %% Mr. LIU Kwok-ming
HERLE Mr. LAl Chi-wah

AR IS A Mr. SO Sai-hung

BRI A e Mr. Louis KUNG Syu-yan
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TEBARBRKERE

List of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

ENfRl %% AR Printing & Publishing

BE& A Convenor AIRBIEAE Mr. HO Kar-hun

% 8 Members e[ e Mr. HO Kin-chung
Rt Mr. John NG King-fai
SRELE Mr. Sunny SHUM Yiu-nam
BB SE A Mr. Patrick SINN Kwok-chung
e Dr. Kenneth MA Kwai-min
BB S Mr. Stanley LIN Kai-yin
PRIFESE A Mr. Ken CHAN Pui-kay
fREX &+ Ms. CHAN Wai-man
TRHEZ L Ms. Brenda PANG On-kei
BiHEEE Mr. TSANG Hip-tai
H& R AE , BBS Mr. YEUNG Kam-kai, BBS
BERKSE Mr. LAU Kut-leung
2R EE Mr. Moby LAU Hoi-tung
SRR Mrs. CHUNG Kit-hung

BE A Convenor PRI AE Mr. Tony CHAN Tung-ngok

% 8 Members SEFEIE L Dr. Lawrance WONG Dun-king
ARt Ms. Rosanna HO Kit-chi
FELL Ms. LEE Pui-wa
AL Mr. Anthony KWOK Chong
BREE 18+ Dr. Alexander CHAN Hing-sang
BRI Prof. CHAU Kwong-wing
BERRE Mr. LIU Chi-ming
ZREL Dr. Joseph LAU Kwong-yiu
BAkE X+ Ms. Susanna KWAN Ping-wan
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RER MM HEZE Wearing Apparel & Textile

BAE A Convenor RiFRIEL Dr. Roger NG Keng-po

Z 8 Members ITRERE Mr. Thomas WONG Cheung-chi
DES Mr. Herry HO Yip-tai
FETEL Dr. Betty LI Shu-wan
MWEIL - Mr. LAM Wai-kong
REEEE X+ Ms. CHEUNG Lai-ha
PREBIRIE 4 Mr. CHAN Tang-yuen
BHTBEE, MH Mr. CHOI Hin-to, MH

A& A Convenor ZRIBA% A, GBS, JP Mr. LEE Kai-ming, GBS, JP

Z% 8 Members TFREE Mr. WONG Yu-loy
fAl5ERIE L, JP Dr. David HO Chi-shing, JP
PR R E Mr. LEE Hung-cheong
[ERR SR e Mr. Samson CHOW Chan-keung
TEREE Mr. PANG Kong-cheung
AT E Mr. SO Pak-tsan
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TEBARBRKERE

List of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

MESERREZE Property Management & Security

BE A Convenor REE (ER) k£, MH Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching-bor, MH
BlB & A Vice-Convenor | {AIRRE LA Mr. Peter HO Chiu-kee
Z 8 Members RKsRSEA Mr. NG Shui-keung
RFRExE Mr. Mark NG Ka-ip
FRIBSEE Mr. LI Keung-tsang
PriEEE+ Dr. YUEN Wai-kay
BIE: 5 Mr. Edmond CHAU Fu-keung
B Mr. Kelvin YAU Man-fat
kRS & Mr. IU Chung-yiu
FREIMRSEAE, MH, JP Mr. SUEN Kwok-lam, MH, JP
REEREE Mr. Kendrew LEUNG Chun-yuen
PoR B S A Mr. Henry CHAN Sai-lun
PRAEERIE L, BBS, JP Dr. Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, BBS, JP
BEERK S Mr. LUK Wai-sing
EEE L Mr. Marco MAK Yik-cheong
SERIEST A, BBS, MH, BH, JP Mr. Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, BH, JP
HUEESE Mr. WONG Kai-sang
EPSREEH L Dr. CHENG Kam-wah
ERRLYE Mr. FOK Tak-ming
WEMLZ L Ms. HUEN Wai-han
BPIF(Z TH2RM, JP Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP
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A5 A Convenor 2EE Ms. Juan LEUNG Chung-yan

BB A Vice-Convenor | FREBIEL Dr. Elex CHAN Shiu-yin

Z% 8 Members JTIREEE Dr. FONG Ping-wah
N Mr. Thomas LEE Mun-nang
EZERAE Mr. Tommy LIM Chun-wah
BEELL Ms. Teresa MA Oi-wah
SRAEIESRE Mr. Herman CHEUNG Chi-fai
REREL Dr. Roy CHEUNG Wai-leung
RLi@%TE, P Mr. LEUNG On-fook, JP
C-S vt Mr. Tony MAK Wing-kwong
BEERE Mr. Spencer LAU Chun-wah
RAEMSTE Mr. Ronald LAl Chi-shing
BEmLE Mr. LAl Man-tak
2l Tk Mr. Joseph SIT Cho-lun
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TEBARBRKERE

List of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

XA XEE Beauty Therapy & Hairdressing

BE& A Convenor ZfEABRZ + ,BBS Ms. CHENG Ming-ming, BBS
2B A Vice-Convenor | EiEE S 4E Mr. CHOI Ho-sang
Z 8 Members FEERE Mr. Thomas WONG Kwok-wah
KFEEE Mr. Patrick CHU Chi-sau
KREWML T+ Ms. Mandy CHU Chor-man
&Lt Ms. Helena HO Miu-yee
FARELE Mr. David LEE
FEHLT Ms. Susanna LI May-ching
FERERSE Mr. LEE Hon-ting
lilf= qmb e Mr. CHIU Norman
RIEMEIX Prof. LEUNG Chung-lam
PRI A Mr. Charlie HUI Hon-fai
ES ks Ms. KWOK Lee
PR EkZ+ Ms. Josephine CHAN Yuk-bing
PRAFZ Ms. Rinbo CHAN Yin-ping
PRFCEH + Dr. CHAN Yin-ping
SRR Ms. Juliana YANG Hui-chun
3 i3 Mr. Nelson IP Sai-hung
BEFRL+ Ms. April LAU Yuk-tong
ELERE Mr. PUN Shi-hoi
B Ms. PUN Pui-fun
BRESAE Mr. TSOI Tin-wai
BEEELL Ms. Sandra TSOI Lai-ha
REEX Mr. LAl Sing-man
BEiBIE T+ Mrs. GUNG Ping-ting
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HERIEZE Domestic Services

B £ A Convenor

ZR{_BEH, MH, SBSt, JP

Dr. David LEE Ka-yan, MH, SBStJ, JP

Z 8 Members

FATRE

Mr. FONG Lap-hang

EiREELA, P

Mr. MA Kam-wah, JP

PR EL+ Ms. Judy CHAN Choi-wan
ST T ch 26 Ms. MAK Yin-king,

Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioner

KB EIRHUX, BBS

Prof. Sylvia FUNG Yuk-kuen, BBS

BBt

Mrs. LUI Kit-han

BTt

Mr. Quincy CHUNG Ho-fai

BE A Convenor Eehstd, P Mr. Joseph TUNG Yao-chung, JP
Z 8 Members apz:e vt Mr. Paul FONG Pui-sing
FRELSE Mr. Johnny LEE Kar-ki
MER - Mr. LAM Chi-ting
MEELZT Ms. LAM Choi-yuk
REERRL Mrs. Gianna HSU
RER&Z L Ms. Linda YUEN Lai-fung
SRIERA S A Mr. Ken CHANG Kin-ming
PROR&EE 2+ Mrs. Alice CHAN CHEUNG Lok-yee
BRAFL Dr. Barry MAK Lui-ming
ZHFESAE, MH Mr. CHOI Pat-tai, MH

EIEREEZE Hotel & Catering

A& A Convenor m A Mr. James LU Shien-hwai
Z 8 Members Al B e A Mr. Blondin HO Yui-kin
FERELE Mr. LEE Wan-lung
FREAL + Ms. LI Hiu-ming
Bria R4 Mr. YUEN Chun-chuen
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TEBARBRKERE

List of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

f2FEEF 2 Healthcare Services

B A Convenor FRE BRI, BBS, JP Prof. Alfred CHAN Cheung-ming, BBS, JP

Z 8 Members Empeit Ms. Tina YAU Moon-tai
AREE XL Ms. SZETO Oi-chun
JLRAEREE A& Dr. Bernard KONG Ming-hei
ARt Ms. Irene HO Shuk-chun
FRETLE Ms. LI Siu-fan
RS 22+ Ms. YAU Chit-yee
HEAX LT Ms. Lucia PO Lai-kwan
THIRTESLE, P Mr. MA Kam-wah, JP
REREL Dr. LEUNG Man-fuk
PR E L Ms. Grace CHAN Man-yee
BREB K& Mr. CHAN Chi-yuk
PR EL T+ Ms. Cindy CHAN Sau-lin
PRFSTE L+ Ms. Iris CHAN Yin-ping
mHRELT Ms. WONG Joy-ying
yakis o Dr. Henry YEUNG Chiu-fat
Ermzt Ms. Hannah YIP Hau-yu
EBEBL L Mrs. POON Wai-yin
IhEEs S s Mr. CHENG Ching-fat
BETEL Dr. Thomas KWONG Wai-ping
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EREREHHE Recreation & Sports

B £ A Convenor

BE A Convenor REFHIE Prof. LEUNG Mee-lee

Z 8 Members FREZ+ Ms. LI Yuet-ying
FREREE Mr. LEE Wai-leung
FiEZ+, MH Ms. LI Fai, MH
FEREL Dr. LEE Yuet-man
B B R Prof. Raymond SUM Kim-wai
EBFhaE Mr. MOK Chung-ping
SEHL+ Ms. Janet YUNG
SRIERA S Mr. Ricky CHEUNG Ying-ming
BRIRAFE 1 Dr. Patrick CHAN Ping-cheung
ks Mr. WONG Ah-ngok
BIKANHIR Prof. LAU Wing-chung
ZlHRFEE Mr. Theo LAU Sek-foo

#HOE Import & Export

EENZEE, SBS, P

Hon. WONG Ting-kwong, SBS, JP

Z 8 Members

THELE, MH

Mr. David TING Tit-cheung, MH

NEFRSEE Mr. Edward CHU Wai-hong
FEIALE Mr. Wilfred LI Kwok-ming
RTIBESE Mr. YUEN Tze-fai

REERE Mr. Andrew YUEN Yiu-chuen
2IfEEEF L, P Dr. LAU Kin-wah, JP
Bximsest Mr. TANG Ka-kwan
HRPFAE Mr. Benson PAU Kit-kwan
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TEBARBRKERE

List of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

BE A Convenor $EE TS E, MH Mr. CHUNG Wai-ping, MH

% 8 Members FEHEE Mr. LEE Kwong-kut
BETRSE A, BBS Mr. WOO Chu, BBS
SRECHESEA , BBS Mr. CHEUNG Sing-hung, BBS
PRI Mr. LEUNG Chun-wah
RERRE Mr. LEUNG Kui-tang
PRk &S A Mr. CHAN Wing-on
PR&ELZ Ms. CHAN Ying
PRIEREA Mr. CHAN Wai-wang
BRIZEME LA, MH Mr. CHAN Wai-lun, MH
SREEEE S , SBS, JP Hon. CHAN Yuen-han, SBS, JP
FERMIE, P Mr. Simon WONG Ka-wo, JP
&=ERE Mr. WONG Wai
mEERERE Mr. Simon WONG Kit-lung
HIBEEE Mr. WONG Yiu-hung
IHRIBE S &, MH Mr. YEUNG Wai-sing, MH
BIERESE Mr. LO Ho-wan
SREZ A Mr. Anthony LOCK Kwok-on
EBIRIE A, MH Mr. NGAN Chun-hung, MH
EHEEXE Mr. LAW Yau-cheong

@ E8HEIS/ Employees Retraining Board



Bl R EABEZE Information & Communications Technology

BE A Convenor

EESEFE L, MH, JP

Mrs. Agnes MAK TANG Pik-yee, MH, JP

Z B Members

TEEEL Dr. Ken FONG Kin-kiu

Al $REE S A4 Mr. Andy HO Kam-wah
FkREE Mr. LEE Wing-man

REE K4 Mr. AU Kai-cheong
REESRSE Mr. Joseph LEUNG Wai-fung
RER+ Ms. Judy LEUNG Wai-chu
RkERAE Mr. York MOK Sui-wah
PRECIZ S Mr. Eddie CHAN Wing-lai
PREBAK S E Mr. Gilbert CHAN Kam-shing
it Mr. WONG Kwong-wing
15 FR#HR Prof. YEUNG Yuet-bor
BEREE Mr. Anthony YEUNG Chee-shing
ErgksE Mr. IP Ngok-fung

HE e, P Mr. John CHIU Chi-yeung, JP
HETEE Mr. CHIU Sin-ping
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TEBARBRKERE

List of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

FEE Retail

B A Convenor FeF LA, SBS, JP Mr. YU Pang-chun, SBS, JP

Z 8 Members TEEEs Mr. TING Wing-fai
KRERSTE Mr. Samson CHU Chi-ming
mEERE Mr. Roy NG
REHkLZ T+ Ms. Ruth YU Lai-yiu
BT Mr. Carollio CHOW Kin-wing
MR S A Mr. LAM Chun-wing
HEENTAE Mr. SIN Kar-tim
BREXE Mr. MA King-huen
REEXT Ms. CHEUNG Lai-ha
PRRZM 2+ Mrs. Agnes CHAN LEUNG Hau-shun
HIEBL T Ms. Alice WONG Nga-lai
BEMZL Ms. Janet WONG
EEilibtes Mr. Wilfred WONG Kam-pui
BAERE Mr. William FU Sing-yam
L vt Mr. Nelson LAl Hung-sun
IPEYSS s Mr. Philip CHENG Nai-yan
ENIE e Ms. AU Sin-lai
NI EAE Mr. TSE Siu-kong
S Mr. Bankee KWAN Pak-ho

FBBY{LZE Entertainment & Performing Arts

BE A Convenor G Dr. TSUI Siuming

Z 8 Members [EEXES S Mr. Jolland CHAN
FOEEL Dr. Philip LEE Siu-wai
FHIERE Mr. Danny LI Chi-kei
BREH Prof. CHEUK Pak-tong
JEBB A Mr. CHOW Kwok-chung
M =18+t Dr. LAM Lap-sam
ek e Mr. LEUNG Chi-keung
ERELE Mr. Lawrence WONG Ka-hee

@ E8HEIS/ Employees Retraining Board



HEE X Electrical & Mechanical Services

BE A Convenor HERZISA  MH Mr. Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH

% 8 Members FLAERR S Mr. HUNG Kai-ming
HERTE Mr. Eugene FONG Yick-jin
KESFEE Mr. CHU Yuk-ching
AL Mr. YU Kin-ho
FERLT Ms. LEE Sau-king
BRETZR Ir BUI Tai-wah
BESEbE Mr. CHOW Cheuk-tao
MR ek Mr. LAM Cho-kong
KR TRZRM Ir Raymond SYNN Cheung
HREERSEA, MH Mr. SIN Kai-ming, MH
BRAamEE Mr. SUEN Ming-lam
SEIEE Mr. KO Wai-kong
REERYE Mr. Marloni LEUNG Tat-wan
Tt Ms. MOK Suk-ping
HERFTEE Mr. CHONG Ming-sun
EKTIZAD Ir Raymond LIN Kam-sui
FEREE Mr. KWOK Chi-keung
PRAEERSEAE Mr. CHAN Chi-kin

BELAZAM Ir Geoffrey CHAN Loong

EHEEE Mr. WONG Kwong-wing
i S Mr. WONG Kam-fai
HEELE Mr. Philip CHIU Chi-kie
EIRI A Mr. POON Kam-ling
BB Mr. CHOY Ip-kin
CIPIER A =] Ir Francis CHENG Cho-ying
FESKERSE A& Mr. LAl Wing-ming
BRI Mr. TAM Kwok-hung
e Mr. KWAN Sun-chuen
RGBT Mr. WAN Chee-keung
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TEBARBRKERE

List of Industry Consultative Networks and Members

IRIBPRIE2 Environmental Services

B % A Convenor inWi+ Ms. Catherine YAN Sui-han

BlB & A Vice-Convenor | JREFS LA Mr. WAN Chung-ping

Z 8 Members XERZ Ms. Florence MAN Fong-leng
REEELL Mrs. WOO Wai-mui
FRlewt Ms. LI Kim-man
FEESE Mr. William LI Chan-wah
HAR AR Mr. Herbert FU
PREANE ST A Mr. Rodney CHAN Kwok-fai
BRI A Mr. TSANG Kwok-keung
HE®EE Mr. WONG Hing-keung
BEBBL Dr. YAN Wai-kiu
Bl EL+ Ms. LAU Wai-yuk
EEIR S Mr. POON Chak-kwan
HE Nt Ms. Elizabeth TSE WONG Siu-yin
BEERE Mr. TAM Chi-wah

A& A Convenor HRSE SRR Mr. WU Ku-chuen

2B A Vice-Convenor | ZREKAE, MH Mr. LI King-hi, MH

Z 8 Members D% Mr. LAM Sing-ming
HIRIRSEAE Mr. Karl SHIN Shiu-kau
RIE T Mr. Moses LEUNG Fai-man
BRRER L+ Mrs. Lily CHAN CHANG Yuk-chun
Ell=onbivad Mr. Billy LAU Wai-kwong
DL, P Dr. LAU Kin-wah, JP
BREREE Mr. CHIANG Wai-hong
BEmRE Mr. TANG Wai-hung
HLERE Mr. WONG Yuet-cheong
Eatibivas Mr. Louis LO Yick-sun
EIRREE Mr. George MAK Kam-chuen

AL EEIBES -

Members of Industry Consultative Networks are listed according to the number of strokes in Chinese.
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List of Manpower Developers

AT EE

Manpower Developers
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SMBEEBRAF]
NETEERAA
NEELE (—A==)BRAF]
REIBHEBR AR
RREEEBRAR
AREITEEARAA
REERZBBERAA]
ARLEEFRAR]
RRIRTT (BH)
=EEFEBERAA
=ZERRURERTT

A tEBRAR

R hkEH R AR
RIEEWZ P
AEHFREE
FIHERAF
RENwHERAR
HEREARAR

PEBIFRER (S B BRAR

PEFERAR AR
FEERTT (B BRAR
hRMEREAR AR
HEENERLDF]
REIRTT (BE) BRAR]
NEEE (BFR) BIRAR
REZERBRAR
SLESEEERAT]
REEBIIMNER AT
BEEBHRTS

BEBE
BEBFRIERBR AR

3M Hong Kong Limited

Lik Kai Engineering Company Limited

The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited
Tate’s Cairn Tunnel Company Limited
Fairwood Holdings Limited

Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited

DKSH Hong Kong Limited

Café de Coral Holdings Ltd

Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Samsung Electronics H.K. Company Limited
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, LTD.
Swire Properties Limited

Swire Travel Limited

Peace Avenue Veterinary Clinic

Tai Hing Catering Group

The Dairy Farm Company Limited

The “Star” Ferry Company, Limited

CITIC Pacific Limited

CITIC Telecom International CPC Limited
CITIC Securities International Company Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited
Centaline Property Agency Limited

CLP Power Hong Kong Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
Main Shine Development Limited

LBS Corporation Limited

Calbee Four Seas Company Limited
PARKnSHOP

Park Hotel International Limited

Belle International Holdings Limited

2012-13 FEF$H| Annual Report
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List of Manpower Developers

32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
55
60
61

62

63
64

BMEXABRAR
HERESE
LEANSRRBRAF
HERTYEEERERAT]
EFHRAR AT
BMATRE (BER) ERAE]
FfEERE

NBREREE (F8) BRAT]
PDET (RH) BRAF]
FiRLARAT
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EEKBEE

EEXEER

A TSR

EFIEEBR AR

S 360 BRAA
REGRITERAT]
RBRERI T AR AR
SN A T BEERAR
EREBEARAR]
SREEREERAT
EHEERARAR]

R BREBRAR
FXORMBRAR
EEERMIREER AT
e SE]
EEERELEERAF]
BEMEREE
ERAEERAT]
BEEEARAR]
ERMEEEERAR
(BREIEMESEKERR)
B\ (RE) BRAR
BEPERRBRAF

EEHBIEIE Employees Retraining Board

Hopewell Holdings Limited

Milton Exhibits Group

ACE Life Insurance Company Limited

Jones Lang LaSalle Management Services Limited
Giordano Limited

Manulife (International) Limited

le saunda holdings limited

Leo Paper Group (Hong Kong) Limited
Satay King (Holdings) Company Limited

Lee Kum Kee Company Limited

Watsons

Watson's Wine

A.S. Watson Group

Hip Shing Hong Group of Companies
Gammon Construction Limited

Ngong Ping 360 Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

EGL Tours Company Limited

United Asia Finance Limited

Canon Hongkong Co. Ltd

Quality HealthCare Medical Services Limited
Imperial Bird’s Nest International Co. Ltd
Inchcape Motors Limited

Maxim’s Caterers Limited

Pfizer Corporation Hong Kong Limited
Midland Holdings Limited

Miramar Hotel and Investment Company Limited
Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited
Crown Motors Limited

Goodwill Management Limited

Hang Yick Properties Management Limited
(A Member of Henderson Land Group)

Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Co. Ltd.
The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited



65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82

83

84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97

BAKRIREBR AR
BAVBEEEARAR]
BAREMEBRAF
BHETRAEERE
BEARKIERRAR]
BEBMEBRAR]
BEEESEER
BEAEAEWEEAT]
BAERE
BEEFG
BB EEPRBRAR
HEAHBERAT]
= (M=) BRAR]
=58 (F8)BRARA
BEE
ERER
BEEERERARAA]
EREEEEERAR
HENBEEARAF
(RIEEKE)
B (B%) BRAR
REERE
BEBERAT]
BRAEE L =
BHERE
BEERESEEERAR
HaitERIEGRAF]
RERESERRAR]
SEYEERERARF
RACEITERAR]
IR EERA A
BRI TH AR A A
RERBERAA]
BB B R AR

Hong Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited
Pizza Hut Hong Kong Management Limited
Hong Kong Express Airways Limited

Hong Kong Disneyland Resort

Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
Hong Kong Airlines Limited

Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Hongkong Land Limited

Hong Kong School of Motoring

The Hong Kong Jockey Club

Hong Kong Broadband Network Limited
MTR Corporation Limited

VF Asia Ltd

Chief Holdings (H.K.) Limited

Architectural Services Department

Sino Group

Truth & Faith International Limited

Shun Hing Electronic Holdings Limited

Elegance Industrial Co. Ltd.
(A member of Crystal Group)

Lane Crawford (Hong Kong) Limited
Sony Corporation of Hong Kong Limited
Baleno Kingdom Limited

Langham Hospitality Group

Ocean Park Corporation

Haitong International Securities Group Limited
Many Wells Property Agent Limited
Celestial Asia Securities Holdings Limited
Goodwell Property Management Limited
Jebsen & Co Limited

Perfect Combo Limited

Hong Thai Travel Services Limited

Hong Yip Service Company Limited

Sa Sa International Holdings Limited

2012-13 F£EF3 Annual Report
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List of Manpower Developers

98
99
100

101
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103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
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128
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Kai Shing Management Services Limited
McDonald’s Restaurants (Hong Kong) Ltd

Savills Property Management Limited

Well Born Real Estate Management Limited
(A Member of Henderson Land Group)

Fuji Xerox (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Urban Group

Ageas Insurance Company (Asia) Limited
Foo Lum Holdings Limited

New World Development Company Limited
New World Telecommunications Limited
New Charm Management Limited
Synergis Management Services Limited
Hsin Chong Construction Group Limited
NWS Holdings Limited

Sanfield Building Contractors Limited
Sun Hung Kai Properties Ltd

Citybase Property Management Ltd
Waihong Environmental Services Limited
Hewlett-Packard HK SAR Limited

Bossini Enterprises Limited

DHL Express (HK) Limited

Vineberg Property Management Limited
KCS Hong Kong Limited

SOCAM Development Limited

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Limited

Saint Honore Cake Shop Ltd

Esquel Enterprises Limited

Hamburg Stid Hong Kong Limited

Hon Hing Enterprises Limited

Ove Arup & Partners Hong Kong Limited
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited

Kerry Logistics



131 FERRBERQA

132 FAIEBRERER AT

133 REREEBRERAR]

134 BERBEEERAT

135 RIEBFRREGR AR

136 SEBEFIREE

137 TEEEE

138 &R (HE) BERLAF

139 F&F(HE)ARAF

140 fERETEREBER AT

141 SBRINKBBERAR

142 HBESE

143 BREEZEEERAF

144 #EDE (FB)BRRQF]

145 BHEFRBFEBARAF
146 REM

147 HE_TFHRAG

148 BERR

149 ERARECEERAT

150 LREIEHETREEAFRAR
151 &=

152 EZRRHRE (B8)

153 BEMFEEERERAT — AR
154 AEON EE 8% (=) BRAF]
155 DFS BIR&EEEHE

156 MTM Lab Japan Limited

157 OKfEF|E

158 The Beauty Group

W el X B TBE RIS -
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Kerry Properties Limited

Karrie International Holdings Limited
Tsui Wah Efford Management Limited
Kiu Lok Service Management Company Limited
Jubilee International Tour Centre Limited
The Charterhouse Causeway Bay

Tao Heung Group

The Wrigley Company (Hong Kong) Limited
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited

DSC Holdings Ltd

Okia Optical Company Limited

Super Star Group

Hung Fook Tong Holdings Limited

Nokia (H.K.) Limited

sanofi-aventis Hong Kong Limited
Worldwide Flight Services Holding S.A.
G2000 (Apparel) Limited

Hospital Authority

Fung Seng Enterprises Limited (FSE)

FSE Engineering Group Limited

Fortress

Zurich Insurance (Hong Kong)

The Great Eagle Properties Management Company Limited —
Langham Place

AEON Credit Service (Asia) Company Limited
DFS Hong Kong Limited

Circle K Convenience Stores (HK) Limited

Manpower Developers are listed according to the number of strokes in Chinese.
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AFEEZE

List of Manpower Developers

AT EERE — e
Manpower Developers (SME)

1 RBEEEEERAR] Tai Yau Storage Group Limited

2 EPEXEREGEEIITERAR] C K Yau & Partners CPA Limited

3 FAMEEETRERA Lee Sik Wai & Co.

4  HNEBEEMEFRAR] Regal World Transport System Limited |
5 RLEE Aon Hewitt

6 RR&EHE Tunbow Group

7 WeLEBENELRARAR] Lam Kam Sang Medical Research Institute Limited

8 HMARKREBERAT Red Stone Global Investment Limited

9 REARATA Chuan Chiong Company Limited

10 Rafl(B5E)BRAA Cerebos (Hong Kong) Limited

11 BAEKEE The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry

12 FEEFERHRERAR Intimex Business Solutions Company Limited

13 EBEEGELAERERPLERAA McKenzie & Associates Integrative Therapy Centre Limited
14 REARAF Hanville Company Limited

15 EREEFRAR] Richform Holdings Limited

16 BERILBRAR Wong Po Kee Ltd

17 BRAXFPFBERRQA] TOGO Pacific Limited

18  HEERRBERERAT Nova Risk Services Holdings Limited |
19 EBKEREERAT Diving Adventure Limited

20 BEBARAT] Charlotte Travel Limited

21 EBOLERBRAF Dim Sum Television Company Limited

22 BIETREBRAR] E.C. Fix Technology Limited

23  BannerSHOP Hong Kong Limited
24  MEG Limited
25  Technicolor Asia Limited

U ER X ETEERDES -

Manpower Developers are listed according to the number of strokes in Chinese.
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